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AB SKF will publish the following financial reports in 1996:
Report on 1995 operations  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .February 7
Report on first quarter 1996  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .April 25
Report on first six months 1996  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .July 19
Report on first nine months 1996  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .October 23

The report on 1996 operations will be published on February 6,
1997.

The complete Annual Report for 1995 will be published on
March 29.

The above reports are available in Swedish and English. 
In addition to these reports, an annual report, Form 20-F, is pro-
duced for the Securities and Exchange Commission, in the U.S.

  
The Annual General Meeting will be held at SKF Kristinedal,
Byfogdegatan 4, Göteborg, Sweden, at 3.30 p.m. on Thursday,
April 25, 1996.

In order to participate in the meeting, shareholders
must be recorded in the shareholders’ register maintained by

the Securities Register Center (VPC AB) by Monday,
April 15, 

must notify the Company before noon on April 22, of their
intention to attend (AB SKF, Group Legal, S-415 50
Göteborg, Sweden, tel +46-31-37 26 52), giving details
of name, address, telephone and shareholding.

  
April 30, 1996 is proposed as the record date for shareholders
entitled to receive dividends for 1995. If this date is accepted
by the Annual General Meeting it is expected that the Securi-
ties Register Center will send out notices of payment on May 8,
1996.

   
The environmental report, which is distributed together with the
Annual Review/Annual Report, is a comprehensive description
of the SKF Group’s environmental activities during the year.

 , -  , .  +--  ,  +--  ,  ,  





The SKF Group

     ’  manufacturer of rolling bearings
and rolling bearing steel and has a leading position within elastomeric
seals.

Wherever there is rotation, there is a need for some form of bearing.
The function of a rolling bearing is to reduce or eliminate the friction
between a fixed and a moving surface, and to carry a load. The life of
a rolling bearing shall be compatible with the life of the application in
which it is mounted. Since the use of rolling bearings is a cost-
effective solution, they are found in all types of engines, machines and
wheels.

The steel from which rolling bearings are made is of decisive
importance for the quality of the bearings. The precision in the analy-
sis of the steel content and the extremely low rate of non-metallic
inclusions are critical factors for the life of the bearing.

SKF’s subsidiary Ovako Steel is the main supplier of steel to the
Group’s bearing production plants. More than 80 percent of the steel
used by SKF today comes from Ovako Steel.

A seal is a product that separates a machine component from the
outside world, either by preventing penetration by foreign particles, or
by ensuring that there is no leakage out.

Rolling bearings, special steels and seals are the Group’s largest
product areas.

SKF’s policy is to provide a full range of rolling bearings, to ensure
that it is always able to offer the best solution to a customer’s problem,
regardless of the type of bearing required. Group policy also includes
maintaining such a geographic presence, either through its own sales
companies, or through authorized distributors, that SKF is always
within reach of the customer.

1995 1994

Net sales, SEK m 36 700 33 273
Income after financial 
income and expense, SEK m 3 334 1 819

Earnings per share, SEK 17.95 11.05
Dividends per share, SEK 5.25* 4.25
Number of employees registered 43 754 41 732

* Dividend according to the Board’s proposed distribution of surplus.





The Chairman’s Review

   entered a consid-
erably calmer phase in 1995. The rapid
recovery, led by the European automotive
industry, which characterized the Euro-
pean economy in 1994, weakened during
the first half of 1995 before subsequently
coming to a halt. The weakening of eco-
nomic conditions in the EU was more
obvious than anticipated, notably in the
two dominant countries, Germany and
France. The manufacturing trend was not
particularly strong during the second half
of the year, and had a downward tendency.
Growth in the automotive industry ceased
and expectations for 1996 remain essen-
tially unchanged. Continuing growth,
albeit at a slower pace, is anticipated in
capital goods.

Economic conditions in the U.S. weak-
ened gradually during the year. There is an
uncertainty as we enter 1996, but lower
interest rates and anticipated tax cuts could
impact positively on investment volumes
and private consumption. The automotive
industry does not expect any noticeable
improvement compared with 1995 and the
trucks sector will probably deteriorate. The
demand for capital goods leveled out and
is expected to improve marginally. A
weakened after-market shows few signs of
improvement, and as a result, no major
growth in these areas is expected during
1996. 

Asia (excluding former Soviet Union)
was one region which did not show any
signs of weakening. Continuing high
growth rate characterized the situation in
most countries in this part of the world.
Japan was the exception in the region and
reported only low growth. This is neverthe-
less an improvement and the Japanese
economy is now showing signs of recovery.

Continuing high growth can be expected
in the region as a whole in 1996. Markets
such as China, Indonesia and Korea are
gaining growing importance in the world
economy and will thus be more important
for companies wishing to play a leading
role at the global level. 

The rolling bearings industry is charac-
terized by its global nature and capital-
intensive operations. It imposes increasing
demands on customer orientation and flex-
ibility. The industry also needs to be fur-
ther restructured to gain a rational compo-
sition and attain the requisite profitability.

We must continually grow if we are to
strengthen SKF’s standing and retain our
market position. This will be achieved
partly through organic growth and partly
through corporate acquisitions when
appropriate for the Group’s strategies.
Organic growth is being achieved through
geographic expansion and the develop-
ment of new products.

Looking at the past financial year, we
can conclude that the Group performed
successfully in all these respects. SKF
increased its volumes and market shares,
and through the corporate acquisition in
Poland, SKF also gained a significant
share of the Polish market. The launch of
the new CARB™ bearing offers new pos-
sibilities. 

We must continually review our struc-
ture, adapting it to meet new conditions
and requirements. We will develop our
strategic expertise and retain our leader-
ship in these areas. The transformation
program conducted within Ovako Steel is
a good example of how we have stream-
lined and developed the structure. By
regarding steel as a component in bearing
manufacture, we have identified new ways
of adding to manufacturing efficiency and
gaining a cost-effective total flow. Addi-
tional cost-saving measures can be made
in this process in which Ovako Steel is
part of the total flow.

In last year’s Annual Report I wrote that
a strong cash flow has the highest priority
since it is a prerequisite for fulfilling our
investment program, restoring the Group’s
financial position and providing sharehold-
ers with a dividend in line with the divi-
dend policy established by the Board of
Directors. Accordingly, it is gratifying to
report that in 1995 SKF generated suffi-
cient capital to finance a record high
investment level of SEK 2.3 billion, and
that the solvency during the year increased
by 2.5 percent to 31.6 percent. As a result

of the positive trend reported by SKF in
1995, the Board of Directors proposes a
dividend of SEK 5.25 per share. 

In conclusion, on behalf of the Board of
Directors, I would like to express our
warm thanks to Group management and
our employees for their highly beneficial
efforts during the year. SKF reported
record earnings in 1995. All employees
contributed to this achievement. 

Göteborg, February 7, 1996





Letter from the President

capture market shares in markets in which
we have greater potential. I have in mind
markets such as the U.S., Asia and eastern
Europe. Of course, at the same time we
will manage and consolidate our position
in the rest of Europe, where we are the
clear leader, as well as in Latin America,
Africa and the Middle East and in parts of
Asia, such as India.

In the North American market, which is
currently the largest bearings market
worldwide, SKF has a strong position in
the industrial after-market. However, in the
automotive and machinery segments, we
are not as equally strong. Regarding deliv-
eries to the major U.S. automotive manu-
facturers, SKF has interesting possibilities.
Our product range encompasses the most
technologically advanced products avail-
able on the market. SKF can offer Hub
Units for both passenger cars as well as
trucks. In both segments, SKF is spear-
heading technological development. We are
expanding our manufacturing capacity in
the U.S. to meet the automotive industry’s
demands for local manufacture. 

Although growth in the U.S. is not high
and is far from the level we are witnessing
in the Asian market, it is a major market in
which each percentage point represents
about SEK 500 m in sales. This is where
we intend to use our potential. 

With the exception of Japan, most coun-
tries in Asia are displaying very rapid
growth. We intend also to increase our
efforts in this region to strengthen our posi-
tion. In recent years, we have captured
about one percentage point of the market
annually, which has meant that Asia as a
region accounts for a relatively larger share
of Group sales. I am quite convinced that
now is the time to accelerate our efforts in
this area.

For example, in late autumn, we com-
menced a study in China in cooperation
with one of the country’s largest bearings
manufacturers to study the possibility of
jointly creating a new company in which
SKF would have a shareholder majority as
well as management responsibility. If we
succeed in implementing our plans, SKF
will immediately become one of China’s
leading bearings manufacturers. It will
then be important to remember that China
is a gigantic market that is now poised for
take-off and can perhaps be compared with
Japan after the Second World War. SKF’s
activities in Asia are described in greater
detail in a separate part of the Annual
Report.

    was a favor-
able one for SKF. We attained earnings of
SEK 3 334 m, corresponding to an 83 per-
cent improvement compared with 1994. The
Group’s strong commitment in the quality
area continued to pervade all aspects of our
operations and we can see considerable
improvements, as described in greater detail
in the Board of Directors’ Report.

SKF increased its sales by 10 percent
during 1995. When translating foreign cur-
rencies to Swedish kronor, we lost approxi-
mately 3 percent. Consequently, the
increase in local currencies was 13 percent.
Changes in the product mix and better
prices accounted for approximately 5 per-
cent, meaning that the volume increase
during 1995 was 8 percent. This is more
than the increase of the rolling bearings
market, which means that we have also
strengthened our position in the world mar-
ket during the year.

One of the most important objectives for
us within SKF is to increase our growth
rate. Our aim is to expand more rapidly
than both the market and competitors and
thereby strengthen our leadership. A faster
growth rate is important for the following
reasons:

• It provides significant economies of scale
in all Group areas.

• It provides the potential to increase our
research and development programs.

• It gives possibilities in developing the
competence of our employees.

• It provides overall superior competitive-
ness.

• It provides better conditions to give the
shareholders increase in value.

Consequently, our strategy is to use our
resources in such a manner that we can

I also wish to note the technical break-
through for which SKF was responsible
with the market introduction of an entirely
new type of bearing, CARB™, which was
presented at the Hannover Fair in 1995.
This is an excellent example of the aspect
of SKF’s corporate vision that focuses on
customer benefit, since the new bearing
solves a problem for customers in a man-
ner which was previously impossible. As a
result of this new solution, the customer
gains improved utilization of his machine
park, while simultaneously reducing total
costs. The new SKF bearing highlights in
an excellent manner the importance of
assigning priority and a central role to
research and development. We intend to
continue this approach and further increase
our resources in this area.

During 1995, we have also worked hard
to increase our business focus, to identify
ways of getting closer to the customer, and
to strengthen these relations, while all the
time focusing attention on customer benefit
and identifying new ways of doing busi-
ness. These efforts have led us to develop
our organization so that it continually
adapts in a more effective manner to the
constantly growing and changing require-
ments of the market. 

During the past year, we invested consid-
erable resources within the Group on for-
mulating our strategies for the future. These
in turn are based on the vision that we have
developed for the Group, namely that:

SKF is to be recognized as the world leader
in bearings, seals and related products by
being the best in our business through:
• providing customer value,
• developing our employees,
• creating shareholder value.

We have an excellent starting point from
which to maintain a good growth rate in
the future, and also provide our owners
with sustainable return.

As we enter 1996, we can note that con-
siderable uncertainty prevails with regard
to the German economy, which is so vital
to Europe. The signals received from the
U.S. are unclear, and major uncertainty
prevails among the world’s automakers in
terms of their expected sales. Continued
growth is expected within the investment
sector during 1996.

Göteborg, February 7, 1996







The strong demand that characterized
the whole of the 1994 fiscal year
continued into the first quarter of

1995. Subsequently, demand leveled off and
weakened during the last months of the year.
The rate of production at the Group’s plants
was raised additionally during the initial part
of the year in order to satisfy the strong
demand for Group products. New recruit-
ment was, however, limited during the
period and related exclusively to direct pro-
duction labor. The increase in production,
which in three years has been slightly more
than 40 percent, was achieved with virtually
an unchanged number of employees. This
was made possible by productivity improve-
ments, partly attributable to the Channel
concept.

SKF’s position in Europe
strengthened despite weakened
growth

The development in Europe varied widely
between countries. All countries of impor-
tance to SKF recorded growth in industrial
production. Germany and the U.K. showed
the lowest rates of increase, approximately
one percent and two percent, respectively,
with Germany weakening further towards
the end of the year. Sweden noted the high-
est increase in production, approximately
11 percent, while Italy and Spain showed
growth rates of slightly more than five per-
cent. The average increase in industrial out-
put in the EU countries during 1995 was
about three percent. However, the predomi-
nant portion of this growth was generated
during the first half of the year, after which
the growth rate diminished.

The automotive industry, which was the
driving force behind Europe’s recovery in
1994, weakened during 1995, and the
machinery industry was the sector that kept
production buoyant during the second half
of the year. In the major German market, the
machinery industry was driven by exports,
while domestic demand remained weak.

SKF traditionally holds a strong position
in Europe and is the clear market leader in
its three important customer segments: the
automotive industry, the machinery industry

and the after-market. This position was fur-
ther strengthened during the fiscal year, as
the trend in Group sales was stronger than
that of the market in general.

Leveling off in the U.S.
after five years of growth

During the latter months of the year, a gen-
eral softening of demand was noticeable in
the U.S. Up to that time, however, the
world’s largest bearings market had grown
for five consecutive years. Industrial produc-
tion rose slightly more than three percent,
compared with 1994. However, trends in the
various industrial segments differed substan-
tially. The automotive industry could not
match the preceding year’s level and annual
figures were slightly below the 1994 level.
Sales of trucks peaked during the year and a
sharp decline started during the second half
of the year. The after-market showed no
signs of improvement, while the trend in the
machinery industry remained favorable.

SKF’s sales to the U.S. automotive seg-
ment differed completely from the general
trend in this industry. As SKF is a relatively
small supplier to American car-makers, it is
more dependent on the trends for individual
models that contain parts supplied by the
Group, rather than on the general market
trend. SKF Hub Units are mainly sold to
Chrysler’s van models and to two new Ford
models. Since these models were successful,
the Group’s sales to automotive customers in
the U.S. continued to increase during 1995.

Continued upswing in Asia

The trend in the Asian market followed the
pattern of earlier years, with rapid growth
and favorable demand for SKF’s various
products. Although the rates of increase in
the countries in this region varied, they were
all high, with the exception of Japan.

SKF’s trends also followed the pattern of
previous years, with rapid growth and high
activity in the market. During the year, an
agreement was entered into with a Korean
partner regarding a joint venture for the pro-
duction of Hub Units in Korea. SKF will be

the majority shareholder in the company and
will have management responsibility.

Strong expansion of activities in
eastern Europe. Manufacturing
operations established in Poland

Industrial production in eastern Europe rose
strongly during 1995. In the past few years,
the Group has consciously strengthened its
sales organization in these countries through
the establishment of SKF’s own sales com-
panies in countries lacking such. Already in
the 1920s, SKF operated wholly owned sales
companies in Prague in the former Czecho-
slovakia and in Budapest, Hungary. During
recent years, sales companies have been
opened in Albania, Bulgaria Croatia, Latvia,
Macedonia, Poland, Rumania, Russia, Slova-
kia, Slovenia, and Yugoslavia. The local
sales organization has been supplemented by
a comprehensive network of distributors and
in cooperation with these SKF has cultivated
both larger and smaller customers.

Following Russia, Poland is the single
most important bearings market in eastern
Europe. This is also a market where several
of SKF’s important customers have elected
to establish their own manufacturing opera-
tions. To strengthen positions and to simul-
taneously gain a better platform in eastern
Europe, SKF acquired a bearings plant in
Poznan in summer 1995. The plant manu-
factures spherical, cylindrical and taper
rolling bearings. A comprehensive program
has been initiated to implement necessary
restructuring measures, process changes and
environmental improvements.

Three years of conscious quality
work yield major improvements

Quality has always been a cornerstone in
SKF’s business culture. In the past, quality
was mainly related to products. During
recent years, all other parts of business oper-
ations have been given attention, as high
quality in the actions of employees and their
relations with customers and other interested
parties, as well as in administrative proc-
esses, has become a major competitive tool.
Employees who do the right thing in the
right way from the beginning, also means
higher quality for the customer and lower
costs for the company. Three years ago, the
SKF Group initiated an extensive quality
improvement program to strengthen this
process. The program is called TQM, Total
Quality Management. An important initial
part of this process involved providing



Board of Directors’ Report

The 1995 fiscal year was a successful year for the SKF Group, characterized by
high capacity utilization, favorable sales and healthy earnings. The intensive
efforts devoted to the implementation of the Channel concept and a new work
organization during recent years are now yielding favorable effects as evidenced
by shorter lead times and resetting times, which are generating increased flexibil-
ity, improved productivity and thereby better profitability.
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employees with the required training and
education in quality awareness. Today, after
three years, virtually all of SKF’s 44 000
employees have completed their first train-
ing program. In turn, approximately 50 per-
cent of these have participated in Quality
Improvement Teams, that is working groups
formed to resolve specific problems that
arise during day-to-day operations. Work in
such groups varies from identifying why the
preventive maintenance of machines in a
channel does not work to finding ways of
reducing personnel turnover in a plant.

The results achieved from TQM activities
include:

• A 50-percent reduction in the number of
customer complaints.

• A 20-percent reduction in the time
required to process complaints.

• Annual savings of between SEK 300 m
and SEK 400 m generated through a
reduction in scrapping and in errors arising
in sales and administrative work.

• The implementation of work climate analy-
ses to improve the work environment on a
trial basis at a number of companies. The
objective is that such analyses be carried
out regularly at all SKF units.

Continuing restructuring led to
divestments and closures

During the recent recession, a number of
activities of a structural nature were initiated
in an effort to lower the Group’s break-even
point and thus enhance its earnings capacity.
These efforts are continuing. During 1995,
restructuring of operations in Argentina and
Brazil was completed, meaning that the man-
ufacture of deep groove ball bearings was
concentrated to the plant outside Buenos
Aires in Argentina, while manufacturing of
taper roller bearings as well as Hub Units
was relocated to the Cajamar plant outside
São Paulo in Brazil. The plant in Guarulhos,
near São Paulo, was closed during the year.

In Germany, it was decided, pending the
authorities’ approval, to establish a joint
venture company with the German needle
roller bearings manufacturer, INA, for the
production of water pump spindles for car
engines. This means that SKF is discontinu-
ing its production of water pump spindles in
Cannstatt, a business which has reported
losses for a number of years. The new com-
pany will be based in Italy. 

In the U.S., SKF decided to close a small
plant in Shippensburg, Pennsylvania, which
manufactures components for rolling bear-

ings, while in France, CGR, a company
involved in the manufacture of basic types
of rolling bearings, was divested. At the
same time, Chicago Rawhide (CR) divested
its manufacture of mechanical face seals to
Caterpillar. All production was accounted
for by Caterpillar and this business will have
better development potential within this
company.

During 1995, the liquidation of Korody-
Colyer in the U.S. was started. This company
manufactures components for diesel engines.
Parts of the company were sold during the
year. The remaining operations will be
closed as there is no buyer. Provisions were
made during 1995 to cover the closure.

During the year, the Seeger group, with
manufacturing operations in Germany, the
U.K., the U.S., and Brazil, was divested to a
U.S. company.

Restructuring of SKF’s distribution system
for the European after-market is progressing
on schedule. During 1995, inventories were
moved from France, Italy and Sweden to the
central warehouse in Tongeren outside Brus-
sels. Consequently, most companies have
now relocated their inventories. The remain-
ing companies in Germany, the U.K., Austria
and Spain will move in 1996. Subsequently,
18 local warehouses throughout Europe will
have been replaced by one central unit. In
addition, there are four inventories at Euro-
pean factories for direct customer deliveries.
This will contribute to maintaining the
Group’s total inventories at a lower level. The
objective, established in 1994 and expressed
as a percentage of annual sales, was to
reduce inventories to 25 percent within two
years. At year-end 1995, inventories
amounted to 24.4 percent of annual sales. 

Another technological
breakthrough by SKF. CARB™
has substantial future potential 

SKF wrote history at the Hannover Fair in
April, 1995, when it presented a completely
new type of bearing, CARB™, to the world.
The last occasion a new type of bearing
appeared on the market was in the 1940s.
On that occasion, SKF was also responsible
for the discovery, known as the spherical
roller thrust bearing. 

The unique feature of CARB™ is that, in
the same bearing, SKF has managed to com-
bine the ability to simultaneously cope with
misalignments and axial displacement of the
shaft. This was not possible in the past.
Moreover, the new bearing is highly com-
pact, meaning it occupies less space.

The primary research and development
work was conducted at SKF in Göteborg but
extensive research work was also conducted
at SKF’s central research unit, SKF
Engineering & Research Centre in the
Netherlands.

During extensive field tests in both Swe-
den and Germany, the bearing was mounted
on drying cylinders in a paper machine,
equipment in which misalignments and axial
displacement of the shaft are frequent.
Among other findings, the tests confirmed
that the new bearing reduced vibration in the
machines. This in turn permitted higher
operating speeds, while simultaneously
reducing maintenance requirements signifi-
cantly.

Marketing of the new bearing, which is
covered by a number of patents, has now
commenced. Response has been very posi-
tive and the production of CARB™ is now
in progress at the Göteborg plant. During the
next two to three years slightly more than
SEK 300 m will be invested in manufactur-
ing equipment for CARB™. After this
development period, annual sales are
expected to amount to approximately
SEK 300 m and then accelerate.

Strong demand and sharp
production increase in streamlined
Ovako Steel

Ovako Steel’s strategic focus on rolling
bearing steel and certain demanding applica-
tions in the machinery and automotive
industries continued during the 1995 fiscal
year. Demand for Ovako Steel’s products
was strong throughout the year.

The relocation of the heavy bar mill from
Hällefors to Hofors, both in Sweden, which
was conducted during the second and third
quarters, had a negative impact on Ovako
Steel’s earnings since the move took longer
than scheduled. Despite this, Ovako Steel
reported a distinct improvement in earnings
in 1995 compared with the preceding year.
Production at the steel mill in Hofors
increased and reached an annual volume of
450 000 tons at year-end. As early as 1994,
Ovako Steel requested permission by the
authorities to increase output from the
approved 400 000 to 550 000 tons. An
interim decision during 1995 permitted an
increase to 460 000 tons and in January,
1996 Ovako Steel’s request for 550 000 tons
was approved.
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Profitability

● Return on capital employed

● Return on total assets

● Return on shareholders’ equity

Earnings and dividends per share

● Earnings

● Dividends

Income/loss

● Operating income/loss

● Income/loss after financial income and expense

Key ratios for 1992 exclude CTT Tools

Definitions see note 1

Definitions see note 1





Profitable product exchange
between Europe and the U.S. within
Seals Division

As a result of the acquisition of Goetze
Elastomere GmbH, currently called CR
Elastomere GmbH, the Group’s Seals
Division gained a strong foothold in the
European market for valve stem seals and
seals for gas springs. The German products
were successfully launched by CR in the
U.S. among a number of important Ameri-
can automotive customers.

Similarly, CR Elastomere was able to start
the marketing in Europe of oil seals manu-
factured by CR in the U.S. During the year,
European manufacture of parts of the U.S.
product range also commenced. SKF’s other
sales organization in Europe also began to
introduce oil seals into its product line.

In the U.S., CR’s shipments to the auto-
motive industry were affected by the weaker
U.S. market for passenger cars and trucks.
However, by securing new business, CR
managed to maintain sales levels thus
strengthening its market position.

The sale of seals for shock absorbers in
Europe was favored by the positive develop-
ments at Fiat, a large and important customer.

Organization adapted to meet
customer and market demands
more efficiently

During 1995, a new organizational structure
was gradually introduced into the Group.
The aim of the change was to provide the
Group with a more customer- and business-
oriented structure to meet the demand and
trends of customers and the market in a
more effective manner. Originally geograph-
ically focused, the Group’s operations have
now been divided into ten divisions, each
with global responsibility for its operations.
SKF Asian Bearing Division is an exception,
however, since total responsibility for most
of the Group’s bearings operations in Asia
has been assigned to this division. The rea-
son is that Asia is today a region showing
very rapid growth. At the same time, it is
very heterogeneous, with a very different
culture. These reasons were considered suffi-
ciently important for the decision that efforts
in this region must be managed locally, and
at such a level as to allow all decisions to be
made very quickly. The divisions are:

SKF Automotive Bearing Division, with
responsibility for the manufacturing and sale
of bearings and bearing-related products for
the automotive industry.
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SKF Electrical Bearing Division, with
responsibility for the manufacturing and sale
of bearings to major producers of electric
motors and two-wheeled vehicles. 

SKF Industrial Bearing Division, with
responsibility for the manufacturing and sale
of bearings to other industrial customers. 

SKF Asian Bearing Division (see above)

SKF Emerging Business Division, with
responsibility for new and fast-growing busi-
ness related to both products and markets.

SKF Seals Division, with responsibility for
the manufacturing and sale of seals.

SKF Specialty Products Division, with
responsibility for five different business
areas, characterized by high-tech perfor-
mance and strong market position. Includes
products for the aircraft industry, textile
machinery and materials-handling systems.

SKF Purchasing, Logistics & Information
Systems Division, with responsibility for
providing service within these areas to all
bearing plants and sales units.

SKF Components Division, with responsibil-
ity for certain manufacturing of rings and
rollers as well as ball and cage production.

Ovako Steel, with responsibility for the pro-
duction of special steels and supplier of
most of the Group’s bearing steel. 

In addition, the Group’s corporate functions
were changed, whereby the Treasury and
Financial Reporting functions were merged
to form a single unit, Group Finance. At the
same time, the Personnel & Quality functions
were split into separate units, Group Person-
nel and Group Total Quality Development.
Other corporate functions are: Group Legal,
Group Public Affairs, Group Business Devel-
opment and Group Technical Development.

Record earnings at all levels

SKF Group income after financial income
and expense amounted to SEK 3 334 m in
1995, compared with SEK 1 819 m in 1994.
Group sales totaled SEK 36 700 m during
the year, compared with SEK 33 273 m in
1994. Other operating income amounted to
SEK 106 m (151).

The Group’s operating income, after
depreciation of SEK 1 360 m (1 416),
amounted to SEK 3 945 m (2 533). Net
financial items amounted to SEK –611 m
(–714). 

Of the Group’s income after financial

income and expense, which amounted to
SEK 3 334 m (1 819), bearings accounted
for SEK 2 804 m (1 499), seals for SEK
229 m (118) and special steels for SEK
297 m (188).

Earnings per share amounted to SEK
17.95, compared with SEK 11.05 in 1994.
The return on capital employed was 19.0
percent (13.1) and on shareholders’ equity
19.4 percent (13.3). Group solvency
improved during the year from 29.1 percent
to 31.6 percent at year-end 1995. Beginning
January 1, 1995, the Group has changed
accounting principles with regard to the sale
and lease-back agreements relating to real-
estate in Göteborg, Sweden. These are now
reported as a financial transaction in the bal-
ance sheet. This resulted in an increase in
liabilities of SEK 645 m and reduced sol-
vency by approximately two percentage
points. Furthermore, interest costs on pen-
sion liabilities and post-retirement benefits
other than pensions are shown as financial
expense instead of operating expense. 

As in the two previous years, the SKF
Group generated a positive cash flow in
1995. Despite major investment costs and
the restoration of dividend payments, the
Group was able to reduce its net indebted-
ness.

Total interest-bearing borrowing
amounted to SEK 6 299 m (7 001) at year-
end 1995, while pension liabilities amounted
to SEK 6 495 m (6 573). At the same time,
the Group had financial assets of SEK
4 035 m (3 594), of which current financial
assets accounted for SEK 2 897 m (2 356).

During the year, SEK 359 m of the provi-
sion for restructuring costs to cover the
Group’s ongoing rationalization program
were utilized. 

Strategic decisions resulted in
sharply increased investments

Capital expenditures in property, plant and
equipment during 1995 rose from SEK
1 356 m in 1994 to SEK 2 296 m. This rise
was attributable to the decision to accelerate
the technological modernization of the
Group’s plants, increase flexibility and
improve productivity. As a result, the Group
will ultimately be able to manufacture the
same volumes using fewer machines, a
smaller workforce and less plant space.

The distribution of investments matches
the geographical spread of the Group’s
plants reasonably well. The major invest-
ments were made in Europe and the U.S.,
where most of the Group’s plants are sited.

Group investments in research and devel-
opment activities rose to SEK 598 m (542),
representing nearly two percent of sales dur-
ing the year.

New work situations place
increasing demands on employee
competence and assumption of
responsibility

The number of registered Group employees
rose by 2 022 during the year to 43 754. The
increase was mainly attributable to the fact
that 1 354 employees were added to the
Group in connection with the acquisition of
the Poznan plant and that 519 employees at
certain SKF distributors are now employed
by the Group. 

Increasingly advanced technology, grow-
ing demands for more comprehensive and
improved service and the constant need to
engage in faster decision-making mean that
employees are today being confronted by
new work situations and new problems. The
trend in the working organization is toward
fewer organizational levels and expanded
areas of responsibility for the individual
employee. Demarcation lines between levels
and categories are becoming less visible.
Working methods are changing towards an
increasing proportion of employees working
within one or several working groups in dif-
ferent types of projects.

An important part of SKF’s work in the
quality area to improve the ability to satisfy
customer demands and requirements as
rapidly and cost-efficiently as possible, is
reflected in the comprehensive process
improvement work that has been started.
Approximately ten business and support
processes, from supplier to customer, are
being identified and analyzed. The increased
application of a process focused on work
flow contributes to the elimination of func-
tional barriers, while cross-departmental
cooperation becomes increasingly more effi-
cient. The new working routines are making
continually growing demands on the compe-
tence and capacity of the employees to
assume responsibility, which increases the
need to provide additional training and
advanced educational programs. SKF’s train-
ing activities are conducted internally and,
when required, with external help. The time
expended on training is continually growing
and will account for at least five percent of
total working time during an economic cycle.





Proposed distribution of surplus

Auditor’s report

Retained earnings SEK 3 309 223 740
Reported income for the year SEK 1 274 605 807
Total surplus SEK 4 583 829 547

The Board of Directors and the President recommend
that a dividend of 5.25 Swedish kronor per share 

be paid to the shareholders SEK 593 247 669
that the balance be carried forward SEK 3 990 581 878

SEK 4 583 829 547

The results of operations and the financial position of the Parent Company and the Group
in 1995 are given in the income statements and in the balance sheets together with related
notes.

Stockholm, February 7, 1996

Anders Scharp Göran Johansson
Mauritz Sahlin Gösta Bystedt
Per-Olof Eriksson Giovanni Mario Rossignolo
Marcus Wallenberg Sune Carlsson
Michael Treschow Stig Blomberg
Melker Schörling Peter Augustsson
Lennart Alverå Clemens Karlsson

We have examined the annual report, the consolidated financial statements, the accounting
records and the administration of the Board of Directors and the President for the year 1995.
Our examination was made in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards.

Parent Company
The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the Swedish Companies Act.

We recommend,
that the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders resolve to adopt the income statement

and the balance sheet,
that the surplus be distributed in accordance with the proposal in the Board of Directors’

Report, and
that the Board of Directors and the President be discharged from liability for their administra-

tion of the company for the year 1995.

Group
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Swedish
Companies Act.

We recommend, that the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders resolve to adopt the con-
solidated income statements and the consolidated balance sheets.

Göteborg, February 29, 1996

Arthur Andersen AB

Mats Fredricson
Authorized Public Accountant





Consolidated income statements

Millions of Swedish kronor 1995 1994 1993

Net sales 36 700 33 273 29 200
Other operating income 106 151 427

Cost of goods sold – 24 525 – 22 970 – 21 279
Selling, administrative and technical expenses note 2 – 6 976 – 6 505 – 6 244
Depreciation note 3 – 1 360 – 1 416 – 1 459

Operating income 3 945 2 533 645

Financial income and expense – net note 4 – 611 – 714 – 1 158

Income/loss after financial income and expense 3 334 1 819 – 513

Taxes note 5 – 1 278 – 545 19

Income/loss after taxes 2 056 1 274 – 494

Minority interest – 30 – 28 –

Net income/loss 2 026 1 246 – 494





Consolidated balance sheets

Millions of Swedish kronor 1995 1994 1993

ASSETS

Current assets
Current financial assets note 6 2 897 2 356 2 692
Trade accounts receivable note 7 6 111 6 157 5 655
Inventories note 8 8 972 8 606 9 220
Short-term tax assets note 5 476 606 415
Other current assets note 9 689 754 772

19 145 18 479 18 754

Capital assets
Long-term financial assets note 10 1 138 1 238 1 342
Investments note 27 74 110 110
Property, plant and equipment note 11 11 286 11 116 11 865
Long-term tax assets note 5 773 1 029 1 286
Other capital assets note 12 579 740 994

13 850 14 233 15 597

Total assets 32 995 32 712 34 351

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Short-term liabilities
Short-term loans note 13 1 715 2 047 2 228
Trade accounts payable note 14 2 764 2 635 2 182
Short-term tax liabilities note 5 457 552 528
Other short-term liabilities note 15 4 238 4 211 4 970

9 174 9 445 9 908

Long-term liabilities
Long-term loans note 16 3 195 3 567 5 536
Pensions and other postretirement benefits note 17 6 495 6 573 6 571
Long-term tax liabilities note 5 1 342 1 248 1 194
Other long-term liabilities note 18 961 976 996
Convertible bonds note 20 1 389 1 387 1 508

13 382 13 751 15 805

Minority interest 166 144 127

Shareholders’ equity note 21
Restricted equity
Share capital 1 412 1 412 1 412
Restricted reserves 4 287 5 043 5 497
Unrestricted equity
Unrestricted reserves 2 548 1 671 2 096
Net income/loss 2 026 1 246 –  494

10 273 9 372 8 511

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 32 995 32 712 34 351

Assets pledged note 22 806 915 1 308
Contingent liabilities note 23 464 628 750





Consolidated statements of cash flow

Millions of Swedish kronor 1995 1994 1993

Operating income 3 945 2 533 645
Depreciation and goodwill amortization 1 434 1 521 1 528

Net loss/gain (–) on sales of property, plant and equipment 55 83 – 154
Net gain sold companies and businesses – 153 – 85 –

Changes in working capital, net of acquired and 
sold companies:
Inventories – 525 566 215
Trade accounts receivable – 87 – 551 – 323
Trade accounts payable 229 459 267
Other current assets and liabilities – net – 125 – 704 8

Cash flow from operations 4 773 3 822 2 186

Additions to property, plant and equipment – 2 296 – 1 356 – 933
Sales of property, plant and equipment, 
net of sold companies and businesses 111 62 292

Purchases of companies – 65 – –
Sales of companies and businesses 443 138 –

Cash flow after investments 2 966 2 666 1 545

Financial income and expense – net – 611 – 714 – 1 158
Taxes – 893 – 393 – 157
Cash dividends, AB SKF shareholders – 480 – –
Change in loans, net of acquired and sold companies and businesses – 658 – 2 271 – 503
Change in other long-term assets and liabilities, 
net of acquired and sold companies and businesses 122 227 628

Translation adjustments 95 149 – 738

Change in current financial assets 541 – 336 – 383



Notes to the consolidated financial statements
Amounts in millions of Swedish kronor (SEK m) unless otherwise stated.



 1 ‒  

General

The consolidated financial statements include the Parent Com-
pany AB SKF and all companies in which AB SKF, directly or
indirectly, owns shares representing more than 50 percent of the
voting rights. AB SKF and its subsidiaries are referred to as “the
SKF Group” or “the Group”.

Investments in companies, representing 20 to 50 percent of the
voting rights, and where the SKF Group has a significant influ-
ence, are referred to as “Associated Companies”.

All companies within the Group apply the accounting rules as
stated in the “SKF Accounting and Financial Reporting Manu-
als”. These rules are primarily based on generally accepted
accounting principles in Sweden (Swedish GAAP). In general,
the rules applied by the SKF Group are also in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles in the United States
(U.S. GAAP). Significant differences between Swedish GAAP
and U.S. GAAP are described in note 26.

Consolidation – subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements are prepared using the pur-
chase method. The consolidated shareholders’ equity includes the
Parent Company’s equity and that part of the equity in sub-
sidiaries which has arisen after the acquisition. The difference
between the cost of acquiring the shares in a subsidiary and the
shareholders’ equity of that subsidiary at the time of acquisition,
adjusted in accordance with the Group’s accounting principles, is
accounted for:

– as goodwill in the consolidated balance sheets, if the cost of
acquiring the subsidiary is higher than the shareholders’ equity,
or

– as a decrease in the value of acquired capital assets, if the cost
of acquiring the subsidiary is lower than the shareholders’
equity.

Intercompany accounts, transactions and unrealized profits have
been eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.

Accounting for investments in Associated Companies

Investments in Associated Companies are accounted for in accor-
dance with the equity method. The value of the investments is
equal to the Group’s share of shareholders’ equity in these com-
panies, determined in accordance with the accounting rules of
the Group. The Group’s share of these companies’ results is
based on their income/loss after taxes. At present no such invest-
ments are accounted for.

Translation of foreign financial statements

The current rate method is used for translating the financial state-
ments of the major part of the foreign subsidiaries into Swedish
kronor. Under this method, all assets and liabilities are translated
into Swedish kronor at year-end exchange rates, whereas income
and expense items are translated at average exchange rates. The
translation adjustments that arise are transferred directly to
shareholders’ equity.

For the translation of financial statements of subsidiaries oper-
ating in highly inflationary economies, the Group applies the
monetary/non-monetary method (MNM-method) according to
the Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 52, “For-
eign Currency Translation” (SFAS 52). Monetary balance sheet
items are translated at year-end exchange rates and non-monetary
balance sheet items, as well as related income and expense items,
are translated at rates in effect at the time of acquisition (histori-
cal rates). Other income and expense items are translated at aver-
age exchange rates. Translation differences that arise are
included in the related lines in the income statement.

Foreign currency transactions

Receivables and payables denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at year-end exchange rates. The resulting gains and
losses are classified as either operational or financial items in the
income statement.

Exchange rates

The following exchange rates into SEK have been used in translating the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries operating in the
countries shown below:

Average rate Year-end rate
Currency 1995 1994 1993 1995 1994 1993

Belgium 100 BEF 24.31 23.17 22.55 22.65 23.42 23.20
Canada 1 CAD 5.21 5.63 6.01 4.88 5.30 6.23
France 1 FRF 1.43 1.39 1.38 1.36 1.39 1.42
Germany 1 DEM 5.00 4.77 4.71 4.65 4.81 4.81
India 100 INR 21.91 24.17 24.27 18.93 23.37 26.11
Italy 100 ITL 0.43 0.48 0.49 0.42 0.46 0.48
Japan 100 JPY 7.64 7.60 7.03 6.47 7.47 7.44
The Netherlands 1 NLG 4.46 4.25 4.19 4.15 4.29 4.30
Spain 100 ESB 5.73 5.77 6.13 5.49 5.64 5.84
Switzerland 1 CHF 6.06 5.67 5.28 5.79 5.68 5.67
United Kingdom 1 GBP 11.27 11.80 11.69 10.30 11.63 12.33
USA 1 USD 7.14 7.71 7.79 6.66 7.44 8.32





Forward exchange contracts

Forward exchange contracts hedge part of the budgeted flow of
goods and services between countries. Realized gains and losses
are included in financial exchange differences.

Currency gains and losses on forward exchange contracts and
loans, serving as hedges of net investments in foreign sub-
sidiaries, are excluded from the income statement. These gains
and losses, less current and deferred income taxes, are trans-
ferred directly to shareholders’ equity, thereby offsetting gains
and losses arising from the translation of the financial statements
of the foreign subsidiaries. For these forward exchange contracts,
the interest difference between currencies is allocated over the
life of the contract in the income statement.

Forward exchange contracts which are not considered hedges
have been valued at market value. Gains and losses are included
in financial income and expense.

Debt and marketable equity securities

The Group applies SFAS 115 “Accounting for Certain Invest-
ments in Debt and Equity Securities”. There are no marketable
equity securities held. Debt securities are held only for trading
purposes with the intention to be sold in the near future, and are
recorded at market value with changes in value recognized in the
income statement. 

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out basis)
or market (net realizable value). Net realizable value is defined as
the lower of current replacement cost or market value less selling
cost. Cost includes material, labor and manufacturing overheads.

Capital and intangible assets

Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis and is calculated
based on the cost of the asset. In some countries, legal revalua-
tions are made in addition to cost, and depreciation is then based
on the revalued amounts. 

The rates of depreciation are based on the estimated economic
lives of the assets, generally 33 years for buildings, 10–17 years
for machines and 4–5 years for tools, office equipment and vehi-
cles.

Goodwill is amortized over 10 years on a straight-line basis,
except for goodwill related to significant strategic acquisitions,
which is amortized over a maximum of 20 years. Amortization of
goodwill is included in administrative expenses. 

Patents and similar rights are stated at cost and are amortized
on a straight-line basis over their legal lives.

Leases

Leases which transfer virtually all benefits and risks incident to
the ownership of the property to the Group (capital leases), are
capitalized and accounted for as assets and incurrence of obliga-
tions. Rentals for other leases (operating leases) are charged
against income over the lease term.

Other operating income

The Group classifies as other operating income items such as
gains and losses on sales of non-production related capital assets,
gains and losses on sales or closures of companies and busi-
nesses, rental income, and results from reinsurance operations.

Research and development

Research and development expenditures are charged against
income as incurred.

Income taxes

All companies within the SKF Group compute current income
taxes in accordance with the tax rules and regulations of the
countries where the income is taxable.

As from 1993 deferred taxes are accounted for according to
SFAS 109 “Accounting for Income Taxes”. SFAS 109 requires
that deferred taxes be calculated on differences between the book
and tax bases of assets and liabilities in accordance with the lia-
bility method which, among other things, means that changes in
tax rates affect the year’s results. Additionally, it allows the
recognition of loss carry-forwards if they, more likely than not,
can be utilized. The difference between the gross effect and the
amounts expected to be utilized is provided for in a valuation
allowance. The cumulative effect of applying SFAS 109 was 732
and was credited to the shareholders’ equity at January 1, 1993. 

Provisions have been made in the consolidated financial state-
ments for estimated taxes on earnings of subsidiaries expected to
be remitted in the following year, but not for tax liabilities which
may arise on distribution of the remaining unrestricted earnings
of foreign subsidiaries.

Postretirement benefits

As from 1993, the Group applies SFAS 106 “Employers’
Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions”
which requires that the cost of health insurance and other similar
benefits provided to employees after their retirement be expensed
during an employee’s active service life. Previously the cost of
these benefits was expensed on a cash basis. The cumulative
effect of the application of SFAS 106 was 572 after considering
tax of 364, and was charged to the shareholders’ equity at Janu-
ary 1, 1993.

Changes in accounting principles

As from 1995, the interest portion of the costs for pensions and
other postretirement benefits are accounted for as financial
expense and no longer as operating expense. The liabilities are
included in interest bearing liabilities.

Beginning in 1995, the Group applies SFAS 98, “Accounting
for Leases” for sale and leasebacks of real estate. This is in
accordance with the new Swedish accounting recommendation
RR6, “Accounting for Leases ” which is required as of January 1,
1997. As a result, the real estate in Sweden which was sold in
1987, 1989 and 1990 and leased back by the Group is accounted
for as a sale-financial transaction. The historical book value of
the real estate is recorded as an asset and the proceeds received





after amortization are recorded as a liability. The difference
between the asset and the liability is the gain of the sale, which,
after considering taxes was 415 and was charged to the opening
shareholders’ equity at January 1, 1989. 

Previous years have been restated according to the new princi-
ples.

Definitions of key figures

The majority of the subsidiaries within the SKF Group report
their results of operations and financial position ten times a year.
The key figures presented in the Annual Report have been calcu-
lated using average values based on these interim reports. There-
fore, the calculation of these key figures using the year-end val-
ues presented, may give slightly different results.

1. Portion of risk-bearing capital
Shareholders’ equity plus minority interest and deferred taxes, as
a percentage of total assets at year-end.

2. Solvency
Shareholders’ equity plus minority interest, as a percentage of
total assets at year-end.

3. Return on total assets
Operating income/loss plus financial income, as a percentage of
average total assets.

4. Return on capital employed
Operating income/loss plus financial income, as a percentage of
average total assets less the average of non-interest bearing liabil-
ities.

5. Return on shareholders’ equity
Income/loss after taxes, as a percentage of average shareholders’
equity.

6. Profit margin
Operating income/loss plus financial income, as a percentage of
net sales.

7. Turnover of total assets
Net sales in relation to average total assets.

8. Earnings per share in Swedish kronor
Income/loss after taxes and minority interest divided by average
number of shares.

9. Yield
Dividend as a percentage of share price at year-end.

10. P/E ratio
Share price at year-end divided by earnings per share.

11. Average number of employees
Total number of working hours of all employees, divided by the
normal total working time during the year.

  ‒   

Research and development expenditures charged against income
were 598 in 1995, 542 in 1994 and 552 in 1993. Additionally, the
Group enters into external research and development contracts
where on behalf of a third party, the Group develops or produces
prototypes of various products. Expenses under these contracts
were 9, 20 and 27 in 1995, 1994 and 1993 respectively, and have
been fully reimbursed.

  ‒ 

1995 1994 1993

Land improvements 9 9 10
Buildings 140 153 148
Machinery and equipment 1 183 1 221 1 252
Leases 12 27 32
Leaseholds 1 1 1
Revaluations 15 5 16

1 360 1 416 1 459

Depreciation related to assets used in manufacturing amounted to
1 181 in 1995, 1 223 in 1994 and 1 245 in 1993. The remainder
relates to assets used in selling, administrative and technical areas.

  ‒     

1995 1994 1993

Dividend income 4 6 7
Interest income 532 521 529
Interest portion of the cost 
for pensions and other 
postretirement benefits –339 –345 –339

Other interest expense –853 –949 –1 048
Financial exchange gains and losses 45 53 –307

–611 –714 –1 158

  ‒ 

1995 1994 1993

Taxes on the income/loss after
financial income and expense

Current taxes –850 –486 –300
Deferred taxes –428 –59 319

–1 278 –545 19

Deferred taxes for 1995 includes an income of 113 related to the
net change in the valuation allowance. Of this change, 3 repre-
sents an adjustment of the beginning of the year balance of the
part of the valuation allowance still existing at year end. The
adjustment was due to a change in circumstances which affected
the judgement on the realizability of the related deferred tax
asset in future years.





Net current and deferred tax assets and liabilities at December
31, were:

1995 1994 1993

Short-term deferred tax assets 476 606 415
Long-term deferred tax assets 773 1 029 1 286

1 249 1 635 1 701

Current income taxes payable 265 271 184
Short-term deferred tax liabilities 192 281 344
Long-term deferred tax liabilities 1 342 1 248 1 194

1 799 1 800 1 722

Gross deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31 were
related to the following items:

1995 1994 1993

Pensions and other 
postretirement benefits 370 403 559

Tax loss carry-forwards 1 261 1 995 2 389
Other 1 171 1 069 1 203
Gross deferred tax assets 2 802 3 467 4 151
Valuation allowance –649 –762 –1 090
Gross deferred tax assets 

after valuation reserve 2 153 2 705 3 061

Pensions and other 
postretirement benefits 153 188 327

Inventory 412 430 454
Property, plant and equipment 1 474 1 544 1 647
Other 399 437 470
Gross deferred tax liabilities 2 438 2 599 2 898

Net deferred tax liabilities/assets –285 106 163

Corporate income tax

The corporate nominal income tax rate in Sweden was 28 percent
in 1995 and 1994 and 30 percent in 1993.

The effective tax rate on income/loss after financial income
and expense and extraordinary items, but before minority inter-
est, was –38 percent in 1995, –30 percent in 1994 and 5 percent
in 1993. A reconciliation of the statutory tax to the effective tax
in Sweden is outlined below:

1995 1994 1993

Tax calculated on statutory 
tax rate in Sweden –933 –509 155

Difference between statutory 
tax rate in Sweden and foreign 
subsidiaries’ weighted 
statutory tax rate –166 –153 54

Permanent differences 13 20 90
Tax loss carry-forwards, net of 
changes in valuation allowance 18 151 –228

Tax adjustments pertaining 
to previous years –86 –26 –1

Other taxes –76 –32 –9
Other, including translation 
adjustments –48 4 –42

Effective tax –1 278 –545 19

Tax loss carry-forwards

The Parent Company and certain subsidiaries, principally in
Sweden and Germany had, at December 31, 1995, tax loss carry-
forwards amounting to 3 876 (6 319 in 1994 and 7 728 in
1993). Such tax loss carry-forwards expire as follows:

1996 93
1997 169
1998 245
1999 250
2000 207
2001 and thereafter 2912

As of December 31, 1995, the total tax loss carry-forwards have
resulted in deferred tax assets of 924, net of valuation allowances.
Such assets can be used to reduce future taxable income, but
since their benefit has already been realized, their future use will
not reduce the total tax charge for the Group.

  ‒   

1995 1994 1993

Cash and bank accounts 1 005 846 784
Debt securities 261 557 857
Government securities 1 271 504 767
Other short-term 
financial receivables 360 449 284

2 897 2 356 2 692

Cash and bank accounts include short-term time deposits of 153
for 1995, 250 for 1994, 174 for 1993.

  ‒   

1995 1994 1993

Acceptances receivable 648 634 570
Accounts receivable 5 753 5 832 5 429

6 401 6 466 5 999
Allowance for doubtful accounts –290 –309 –344

6 111 6 157 5 655

The provision for doubtful accounts charged against income
amounted to 37 in 1995, 66 in 1994 and 119 in 1993.

  ‒ 

Inventories at December 31, net of allowance for obsolescence,
consist of the following:

1995 1994 1993

Finished goods 5 469 5 133 6 048
Work in process 2 325 2 206 1 958
Raw materials 716 735 656
Supplies 462 532 558

8 972 8 606 9 220





  ‒   

1995 1994 1993

Advances to suppliers 36 40 36
Prepaid expenses 149 146 202
Accrued income 58 110 125
Other current receivables 446 458 409

689 754 772

 1 ‒ -  

1995 1994 1993

Long-term financial receivables 1 124 1 209 1 337
Debt securities 14 29 5

1 138 1 238 1 342

The majority of the long-term financial receivables is recorded at
market value.

 11 ‒ ,    

1995 1994 1993
Acquisi- Accumu- Acquisi- Accumu- Acquisi- Accumu-
tion cost lated depr. tion cost lated depr. tion cost lated depr.

Land 379 0 384 0 436 0
Land improvements 283 194 296 197 302 191
Buildings 4 770 2 463 4 952 2 483 5 063 2 420
Machinery and equipment 19 573 11 497 19 580 11 874 20 059 11 907
Capital leases 216 134 277 181 352 185
Leaseholds 27 5 30 6 9 6
Revaluations 507 255 543 262 598 270

25 755 14 548 26 062 15 003 26 819 14 979
Net 11 207 11 059 11 840
Advances to suppliers 79 57 25

11 286 11 116 11 865

Capital leases consist of the following:

1995 1994 1993

Land 6 6 10
Buildings 71 77 116
Machinery and equipment 139 194 226

216 277 352

Revaluations, net, are related primarily to buildings.

 1 ‒   

1995 1994 1993
Acquisi- Accumu- Acquisi- Accumu- Acquisi- Accumu-
tion cost lated amort. tion cost lated amort. tion cost lated amort.

Goodwill 706 226 881 272 1 030 251
Patents and similar rights 16 12 16 11 15 13

722 238 897 283 1 045 264
Net 484 614 781
Deferred charges 95 126 213

579 740 994

Direct writeoffs of goodwill in 1995 and 1994 were 29 and 49, respectively.





 1 ‒ - 

1995 1994 1993

Bank loans 1 128 1 434 1 759
Other short-term loans 135 227 64

1 263 1 661 1 823

Current portion of long-term loans 452 386 405
1 715 2 047 2 228

The maximum month-end amount of short-term loans outstand-
ing, excluding the current portion of long-term loans, was 2 204
in 1995, 2 750 in 1994 and 3 194 in 1993. The average month-
end amount outstanding during the year was 1 973 in 1995,
2 310 in 1994 and 2 527 in 1993. The weighted average interest
rate was 9.9 percent, 7.2 percent and 13.1 percent in 1995, 1994
and 1993, respectively, and was 7.6 percent at December 31,
1995. Average amounts outstanding and weighted average inter-
est rates have been computed based on the amounts outstanding
at the end of each month and related interest expense.

At December 31, 1995, the Group had unutilized long-term
lines of credit of 2 464 expiring from 1997 to 2000. Commitment
fees ranging from 0.13 percent to 0.18 percent are required on
these lines of credit.

 1 ‒   

1995 1994 1993

Acceptances payable 283 267 313
Accounts payable 2 481 2 368 1 869

2 764 2 635 2 182

 1 ‒  - 

1995 1994 1993

Accrued expenses and 
deferred income 3 513 3 459 4 224

Other short-term liabilities 725 752 746
4 238 4 211 4 970

Accrued expenses and deferred income include accrued vacation
pay of 624, 604 and 518 at December 31, 1995, 1994 and 1993
respectively, and accrued social charges (including payroll taxes)
of 545, 486 and 618. 

 1 ‒ - 

Long-term loans at the end of the year, excluding the current por-
tion are:

1995 1994 1993

Debentures (maturing from 
1998 to 2005) bearing interest 
from 7.6 to 14.0 percent * 1 445 1 596 1 971

Bank loans (maturing from 
1996 to 2008) bearing interest 
from 1.8 to 17.8 percent * 935 1 463 2 523

Other loans (maturing from 
1996 to 2010) bearing interest 
from 2.1 to 26.0 percent * 815 508 1 042

3 195 3 567 5 536
* December 31, 1995

The current portion of long-term loans is included in short-term
loans (see note 13). 

Maturities of long-term loans outstanding at December 31, 1995
are as follows:

1997 297
1998 522
1999 985
2000 131
2001 38
2002 and thereafter 1 222

The terms of certain loan agreements contain various restric-
tions, relating principally to the further pledging of assets, addi-
tional borrowing and payment of intercompany dividends.

Of the long-term loans, amounts totalling 322, 571 and 859
were collateralized at December 31, 1995, 1994 and 1993,
respectively.

At December 31, 1995, the market value of long-term loans
was approximately 5 percent greater than the book value after
consideration of related interest rate swaps. The market value has
been calculated by discounting the future cash flows of the loans
using the interest rates currently available.
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1995 1994 1993

Pensions 5 550 5 552 5 433
Other postretirement benefits 945 1 021 1 138

6 495 6 573 6 571

Charges against income in 1995, 1994 and 1993 for pension and
similar plans were 640, 654 and 500, which include a net interest
cost of 261, 264 and 259, respectively. The interest income por-
tion of this net interest cost represents actual return on assets in
pension funds, whereas the interest expense portion has been cal-
culated on the average of the opening and closing balances of the
pension obligation. Interest rates used vary by country, and were
6.2, 7.7 and 6.1 percent in 1995, 1994 and 1993, respectively for
indexed Swedish pensions and 3.5 percent in 1995, 1994 and





1993 for fixed Swedish pensions. An interest rate of 6.5 percent
was used in 1995 and 6.4 percent in 1994 and 1993 for the Ger-
man companies, which represented 65 percent of the Group’s total
pension obligation in 1995 and 1994 and 63 percent in 1993.

SKF sponsors several defined postretirement benefit plans cov-
ering most salaried and hourly employees in the United States.
The plans, which are unfunded, provide certain health care and
life insurance benefits to eligible retired employees.

The Group applies SFAS 106, “Employers’Accounting for
Postretirement Benefits other than Pensions” since 1993. 

Net periodic postretirement benefit cost includes the following
components:

1995 1994 1993 

Service cost 11 12 15
Interest cost 78 81 80
Net periodic postretirement 
benefit cost 89 93 95

The following table sets forth the accrued postretirement benefit
liability recognized in the balance sheet of the Group at Decem-
ber 31:
Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation 

1995 1994 1993

Retirees 796 760 829
Other fully eligible plan participants 147 138 195
Other plan participants 139 123 114
Total accumulated postretirement 
benefit obligation 1 082 1 021 1 138

Unrecognized loss –137 0 0
945 1 021 1 138

The assumed annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of cov-
ered health care benefits was 10 percent in 1995, 11 percent in
1994 and 12 percent in 1993. The rate was assumed to decline by
0.5 to 1 percentage point per year to an ultimate rate of 6 percent.
The assumed discount rate used in the calculations was 7.5 per-
cent. An increase in the assumed health care cost trend rates by
one percentage point would increase the accumulated postretire-
ment benefit obligation as of December 31 by 94 in 1995, 81 in
1994 and 92 in 1993, and the aggregate of the service and inter-
est cost components of the net periodic postretirement benefit by
9 in 1995 and in 1994 and 8 in 1993.
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1995 1994 1993

Long-term portion of capital 
leases (see note 19) 53 68 125

Other 908 908 871
961 976 996

Included in other is the liabilty arising from the sales and financ-
ing transaction of real estate in Sweden. (See note 1, Changes in
accounting principles).

 1 ‒ 

Future minimum rental commitments at December 31, 1995 for
capital leases and non-cancellable (within one year) operating
leases were as follows:

Capital Operating
leases leases

1996 20 190
1997 18 135
1998 14 95
1999 13 67
2000 4 51
2001 and thereafter 9 273

Less: Amount representing 
interest and executory costs –8

Present value of minimum lease 
payments under capital leases 70

Less: Current portion –17

Long-term portion 53

Net rental expense related to operating leases was 213 in 1995,
225 in 1994 and 239 in 1993. Contingent rentals and sublease
income were not significant in any of the years presented.

  ‒  

In May 1992, AB SKF issued zero coupon convertible bonds
amounting to XEU 145 million after a discount of 8.75 percent.
During 1995, the equivalent of 137 093 shares or XEU 5 million
nominal amount was repurchased. Upon full conversion on the
due date, the nominal amount of XEU 286 million will result in
the issuance of 7 122 928 B shares. Conversion can be requested
up to July 26, 2002. The holder is entitled to request redemption
on July 26, 1997. On or after that date the bonds are redeemable
at any time at the option of AB SKF, as a whole or in part.
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Share capital
The share capital at December 31, 1995 consisted of the follow-
ing shares (nominal value SEK 12.50 per share):

Number of shares Aggregate
authorized and nominal

outstanding value

A shares 49 256 332 616
B shares 63 743 224 796

112 999 556 1 412

The designations A and B indicate the voting power of the shares.
An A share has one vote, a B share one-thousandth of one vote.

Restricted reserves
In accordance with statutory requirements in Sweden and certain
other countries in which the SKF Group operates, the Parent
Company and its subsidiaries maintain restricted reserves which
are not available for distribution as dividends.





The Swedish Companies Act requires that 10 percent of net
income be transferred to the legal reserve (part of restricted
reserves) until the legal reserve amounts to 20 percent of the
share capital. Premiums paid on new share issues must also be
transferred to the legal reserve.

In countries where legal revaluations of assets are made, the
revaluation surplus must be transferred to legal reserves.

Tax laws in Sweden and certain other countries permit alloca-
tions to reserves that are deductible for tax purposes. To a certain
extent, companies can thus allocate income so that it remains in
the business without being taxed immediately. In the balance
sheet the cumulative value of these allocations, less the related
deferred tax liabilities, is shown under restricted reserves. Differ-
ences between statutory reporting and reporting for Group pur-
poses are also treated as restricted reserves. 

Unrestricted equity
Unrestricted earnings include earnings distributable by the Parent
Company and those net earnings that may be remitted from sub-
sidiaries to the Parent Company within one year. The amount has
been reduced by accumulated losses in other subsidiaries. In
determining the remittable amounts, consideration has been
given to legal and exchange restrictions, but not to the financial
position of the remitting subsidiaries.

Changes in shareholders’ equity

Re- Unre-
Share stricted stricted

capital reserves equity Total

Closing balance 1992-12-31 1 412 4 064 2 959 8 435
Adjustment due to changes in 
accounting principles 
SFAS 109 and 106 (see note 1, 
Income taxes and 
Postretirement benefits) 160 160

Adjusted opening 
balance 1993-01-01 1 412 4 064 3 119 8 595

Net loss –494 –494
Transfer between reserves 881 –881
Translation adjustments 
and revaluations 552 –142 410

Closing balance 1993-12-31 1 412 5 497 1 602 8 511

Net income 1 246 1 246
Transfer between reserves –102 102
Translation adjustments 
and revaluations –352 –33 –385

Closing balance 1994-12-31 1 412 5 043 2 917 9 372

Cash dividend –480 –480
Net income 2 026 2 026
Transfer between reserves –257 257
Translation adjustments 
and revaluations –499 –146 –645

Closing balance 1995-12-31 1 412 4 287 4 574 10 273

As described in note 1, translation adjustments arising from the
application of the current rate method are transferred directly to
shareholders’ equity. Changes in cumulative translation adjust-
ments which are included in both restricted and unrestricted
reserves, are as follows:

1995 1994 1993

Balance at beginning of year 214 598 191
Aggregate translation adjustments –775 –490 916
Gains/losses from hedges 
(net of taxes) of investments 
in foreign subsidiaries 134 106 –509

Balance at end of year –427 214 598

  ‒  

The following assets have been pledged to secure loans and other
obligations:

1995 1994 1993

Mortgages on real estate 470 611 673
Chattel mortgages 276 215 468
Other mortgages 60 65 134
Total mortgages 806 891 1 275
Government securities 0 24 30
Other assets pledged 0 0 3

806 915 1 308

Mortgages are stated at the nominal value of the mortgage deeds
and other pledged assets are stated at net book value. The
pledged assets secured obligations of 777 at December 31, 1995,
895 in 1994 and 859 in 1993.
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1995 1994 1993

Discounted bills  35 64 89
Unrecognized and unfunded vested 
and unvested retirement benefits 265 332 391

Other guarantees and 
contingent liabilities 164 232 270

464 628 750
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External sales for the Group per geographical area were as follows:

1995 1994 1993

Sweden 2 240 1 837 1 415
Europe (excluding Sweden) 19 328 16 632 14 419
United States and Canada 7 955 8 145 7 525
Other countries 7 177 6 659 5 841

36 700 33 273 29 200

The Group’s identifiable assets (total assets excluding cash, bank
accounts, short-term investments, intercompany receivables and
shareholdings, but before consolidation eliminations), amounted
at December 31, 1995 to 30 763 and to 31 016 in 1994 and
32 189 in 1993. The geographical location of these assets was as
follows:

1995 1994 1993

Sweden 4 386 4 287 4 376
Europe (excluding Sweden) 15 683 14 987 14 903
United States and Canada 5 890 6 511 7 235
Other countries 4 804 5 231 5 675

30 763 31 016 32 189

Dividends of 489 in 1995, 375 in 1994 and 353 in 1993 were
received by the Parent Company from foreign subsidiaries.
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1995 1994 1993

Operations in Sweden
Number of work sites 17 19 20
Total average number of employees 6 418 6 282 5 975
Wages and salaries:
Boards and Managing Directors 25 23 18
Other employees 1 547 1 420 1 340
Total in Sweden 1 572 1 443 1 358

Operations abroad
Number of countries 66 61 57
Total average number of employees 36 223 33 790 33 464
Wages and salaries:
Boards and Managing Directors 110 121 119
Other employees 8 335 7 804 7 579
Total abroad 8 445 7 925 7 698

Total average number of employees 42 641 40 072 39 439
Total wages and salaries 10 017 9 368 9 056

Of the average number of employees in Sweden during 1995,
1 059 were women and 5 359 were men. The corresponding fig-
ures for 1994 and 1993 were 1 065 women and 5 217 men, and
1 071 women and 4 904 men respectively. 

Of the average number of employees abroad during 1995,
6 183 were women and 30 040 were men. The corresponding fig-
ures for 1994 and 1993 were 5 466 women and 28 324 men, and
6 034 women and 27 430 men respectively.

In accordance with the resolution of the Annual General Meet-
ing, the Board received a fee of SEK 1 700 000. SEK 500 000
was distributed to the Chairman of the Board and SEK 150 000
to each elected board member who is not employed in active ser-
vice in AB SKF (the Company).

Giovanni Mario Rossignolo, the Chairman and Chief Execu-
tive of SKF’s Italian subsidiary received a compensation of
ITL 240 000 000 during 1995, in addition to his annual fee as a
board member in AB SKF.

Mauritz Sahlin, who left his position as President and Group
Chief Executive at the Annual General Meeting 1995, received
SEK 3 164 464 during the year as salary and other remunerations
excluding pension. This amount includes a bonus of SEK

1 160 600. Mauritz Sahlin also received USD 30 000 as fee for
board membership in a subsidiary and free housing. Beginning
July, 1995, Mauritz Sahlin received pension according to SKF’s
so-called “60-year agreement” .

Peter Augustsson, who entered as President and Group Chief
Executive at the Annual General Meeting in 1995, received SEK
3 011 000 in 1995 as salary and other remunerations from the
Company, which included a bonus of SEK 350 000. He received
USD 30 000 as an additional fee as board member in a sub-
sidiary, free housing, and a so-called “60-year agreement”, (enti-
tling to 70 percent of pensionable income up to 65 years of age at
retirement after 60 years of age). After the age of 65 and in
excess of the normal ITP-plan, an extra lifelong old age pension
corresponding to 32.5 percent of pensionable income exceeding
20 basic amounts will be paid. In the event of termination of
employment at the request of the company, Peter Augustsson will
receive a severance payment amounting to two years’ salary.

Certain members of Group management will receive an addi-
tional pension over and above the ordinary plan and in one case,
a contract exists for early old age pension.





Average number of employees, wages and salaries by country:

Average number Wages and salaries
of employees in SEK thousands  

Argentina 593 57 004
Australia 256 55 675
Austria 776 278 164
Belgium 265 78 060
Brazil 906 122 688
Canada 152 44 518
Chile 54 13 621
China 53 1 641
Colombia 15 2 526
Denmark 51 18 082
Europe, other 40 4 084
Finland 55 16 056
France 3 881 962 281
Germany 7 533 2 841 519
Greece 44 6 407
Hong Kong 45 7 054
Hungary 41 4 094
Indonesia 8 627
India 2 652 78 353
Italy 5 821 1 200 195
Ivory Coast 2 877
Japan 125 70 748
Jordan 4 293
Kenya 28 2 091
Korea 26 5 041
Malaysia 606 47 409
Morocco 1 427
Mexico 766 44 116
The Netherlands 660 242 900
New Zealand 78 9 174
Nigeria 5 207
Norway 46 14 462
Pakistan 2 443
Panama 68 14 137
Peru 35 5 402
Poland 591 16 531
Philippines 23 1 748
Portugal 37 6 505
Saudi Arabia 1 692
Singapore 330 56 181
South Africa 779 84 888
Spain 535 123 783
Sweden 6 418 1 572 195
Switzerland 53 33 400
Taiwan R.O.C. 63 11 486
Thailand 85 10 246
Czech Republic 44 3 117
Tunisia 1 311
Turkey 52 5 653
United Arab Emirates 2 520
United Kingdom 1 039 195 694
Uruguay 11 2 147
USA 6 704 1 633 940
Venezuela 45 3 277
Vietnam 14 932
Zambia 84 1 769
Zimbabwe 37 2 034

42 641 10 017 425

Average number of employees in Sweden, specified by work site:

Arvika 273
Danderyd 13
Eskilstuna 16
Göteborg 2 699
Helsingborg 26
Hofors 1 600
Hällefors 661
Jönköping 15
Karlskoga 42
Katrineholm 524
Landskrona 70
Lidköping 431
Ludvika 4
Malmö 6
Mora 21
Stockholm 7
Sundsvall 10

6 418



U.S. GAAP
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An annual report, Form 20-F, is submitted to the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC), in the U.S. Accounting policies of
the SKF Group that differ significantly from U.S. GAAP are as
follows:

1. Deferred income taxes
Adjustments for deferred income taxes in the reconciliation to
U.S. GAAP are attributable to the differences described below.

2. Revaluation of assets
In certain countries, assets have been revalued at an amount in
excess of cost. U.S. GAAP does not permit the revaluation of
assets in the financial statements.

3. Capitalization of interest expense
In accordance with Swedish GAAP, the SKF Group has not capi-
talized interest expense incurred in connection with the financing
of expenditures for construction of property, plant and equip-
ment. Such interest expense is required to be capitalized in
accordance with U.S. GAAP.

4. Accounting for early retirement benefits
The SKF Group has in previous years allocated the costs for
early termination benefits between early and normal retirement
for certain Group companies. U.S. GAAP requires costs for early
retirement benefits to be expensed in the year when the benefits
are accepted by the employees.

5. Gain on sale of real estate
In 1991 real estate in Halmstad, Sweden, was sold and partially
leased back. During 1994 this commitment was discontinued.
In accordance with U.S. GAAP, the remaining gain has therefore
been realized.

The real estate in Sweden, which was sold and leased back in
1987, 1989, and 1990 is accounted for as a sale and financial
transaction beginning in 1995 in the Swedish accounts (see note
1 – Changes in accounting principles). Accordingly, there are no
differences between Swedish and U.S. GAAP for these transac-
tions. 

6. Pensions
Periodic pension cost and liability is calculated by the Group
according to local laws and accounting principles. Under U.S.
GAAP, the periodic pension cost and liability should be calcu-
lated according to SFAS 87, “Employers’Accounting for Pen-
sions”.

The Group sponsors defined benefit plans in several countries,
principally Sweden, Germany, France, the United States and
Spain. The Swedish plan supplements statutory pensions where
benefits are established by national organizations. The sub-
sidiaries in France sponsor a retirement indemnity plan in accor-
dance with French National Employer/Employee agreements.
Plans in Germany, Spain and the United States are designed to
supplement these countries’ social security pensions. Only the
U.S. plans are funded. Benefits are based on a combination of
age, salary and service and are available to all employees meet-
ing age, service and other requirements.

The following tables summarize approximate disclosures under
SFAS 87. 

Net periodic pension cost for the plans described above, included
in the Group’s approximate U.S. GAAP income statement
includes the following components:

1995 1994 1993

Service cost 102 104 107
Interest cost 543 527 532
Actual return on assets -558 48 –217
Other, net 402 –162 50
Net periodic pension cost 489 517 472

Assumptions used in the calculations:

1995 1994 1993

Discount rates 6–8.5% 4–9.5% 6.5–8%
Rates of increase in 
compensation level 2.5–5% 2.5–6% 2.5–5%

Rate of return on investments 8.5–10% 8.5–10% 8.5–10%

The following table sets forth these plans’ funded status and
amounts recognized in the Group’s approximate U.S. GAAP
balance sheets:

1995 1994 1993

Actuarial present value of:
Vested benefit obligation 7 022 6 431 6 737
Accumulated benefit obligation 7 275 6 662 6 937
Projected benefit obligation 7 713 7 074 7 339

Plan assets at fair value –2 657 –2 396 –2 695
Projected benefit obligation 
in excess of plan assets 5 056 4 678 4 644

Unrecognized net profit/loss –37 26 15
Unrecognized net obligation 
at initial application –436 –457 –612

Unrecognized prior service cost –101 –124 –149
Adjustment required to 
recognize minimum liability 374 278 700

Pension liability 4 856 4 401 4 598

Plan assets are invested primarily in securities and bonds.

7. Forward exchange contracts
According to U.S. GAAP, a forward exchange contract is
accounted for as a hedge only when there is a firm commitment.
According to Swedish GAAP, contracts hedging forecasted trans-
actions are also accounted for as hedges. In these cases, a valua-
tion of the contract is not made.

Contracts hedging forecasted transactions, not covered by firm
commitments, are accounted for as the difference between the
agreed forward rate and the market forward rate on the closing
day, according to U.S. GAAP.





8. Statements of cash flow
The following is a statement of cash flow according to SFAS 95
with approximate values:

1995 1994 1993

Net income/loss 2 026 1 246 –494
Depreciation and 
goodwill amortization 1 434 1 521 1 528

Minority interest in net income 30 28 –
Net loss/gain (–) on sales of 
property, plant and equipment 55 83 –154

Net gain sold companies 
and businesses -153 -85 –

Changes in working capital, 
net of acquired and sold 
companies:

Inventories –525 566 215
Trade accounts receivable –87 –551 -323
Trade accounts payable 229 459 267
Other current assets 
and liabilities – net –125 –704 8

Changes in tax assets 
and liabilities – net 385 152 –176

Cash flow from operations 3 269 2 715 871
Cash flow used in investments –1 807 –1 156 –641
Cash flow used in 
financing activities –1 016 –2 044 125

Translation adjustments 95 149 –738
Change in current financial assets 541 –336 –383

The Group considers current financial assets to be cash and cash
equivalents (see note 6).

9. Discontinued operations
According to U.S. GAAP the discontinuation of portfolio busi-
nesses should be reported separately on the income statement.

1995 1994 1993

Gain on sales of shares 
in Sandvik AB, net – – 154

10. Financial instruments and credit risks
The Group has a well defined policy for the management of
financial risks, including currency, interest and credit risks. This
policy is discussed in the annual report in the section, “Financial
objectives and risk management”. The policy sets forth the deriv-
ative financial instruments authorized for use in the management
of financial risks. Derivatives are used primarily to hedge the
Group’s exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange
rates and interest rates. To a very limited extent, the Group also
uses derivative financial instruments for trading purposes, which
is defined by the Group’s policy. At December 31, 1995, however,
no such instruments were outstanding. 

During 1995, forward foreign exchange contracts, cross cur-
rency swaps and currency options were the financial instruments
used to hedge foreign currency rate exposure, including the hedg-
ing of net investments in foreign subsidiaries, firm commitments,
anticipated transactions and internal bank activities. Cross cur-
rency swaps and interest rate swaps and options were used to

manage the interest rate exposure on foreign currency borrow-
ings, by swapping fixed interest rates to floating interest rates.

The accounting policies applied in respect of the different
types of derivative financial instruments are described in note 1.

The table below summarizes the gross contractual amounts of the
Group’s derivative financial instruments by type and purpose as
of December 31, 1995:

Type of instruments:
Forward exchange contracts 17 774
Cross currency swaps 2 602
Currency options 1 257
Interest rate swaps and options 2 365

23 998
Purpose:
Hedging of: 
Firm commitments 3 817
Anticipated transactions 6 221
Net equity investments 4 720
Other internal bank activities 6 575
Interest rate management 2 665

23 998

At December 31, 1995 a net unrealized gain of 31 was deferred
with respect to hedges of anticipated transactions. The account-
ing for this amount represents a difference between U.S. GAAP
and Swedish GAAP, see note 26.7. All hedges of firm commit-
ments and anticipated transactions are expected to occur in 1996. 

At December 31, 1995, the total carrying amounts and fair
values of all derivative financial instruments were –12 and 92
respectively. The fair value of the derivatives was estimated as
the amount that the Group would receive or pay to terminate the
contracts at year-end, taking into account the current unrealized
gains or losses on open contracts. Market quotes were obtained
for all derivatives.

Credit risks
The Group’s concentration of operational credit risk is limited
primarily because of its many geographically and industrially
diverse customers.

The Group is exposed to credit losses in the event of non-
performance by the counterparties to its financial instruments but
does not expect any counterparties to fail to meet their obliga-
tions. The Group deals only with well established international
financial institutions. The Group does not obtain collateral or
other security to support financial instruments subject to credit
risk. 

11. Sale of fixed assets
During 1993, the Group recorded the sale of power plants in Italy
in accordance with Swedish GAAP. However, since the legal title
was only transferred in 1994 the transaction is recognized in
1994 in accordance with U.S. GAAP.





12. Changes in accounting principles
Changes in accounting principles shown in 1993 relate to SFAS
109 and SFAS 106 and according to Swedish GAAP, their cumu-
lative effect is transferred directly to shareholders’ equity (see
note 1, Income taxes and Postretirement benefits). According to 

U.S. GAAP, changes in accounting principles are reported in the
income statement. An adjustment has therefore been made to net
income but not to shareholders’ equity in the reconciliation to
U.S. GAAP.

13. Summary
The application of U.S. GAAP would have the following approximate effect on consolidated net income/loss, shareholders’ equity and
earnings per share. 

1995 1994 1993

Net income/loss as previously reported – 1 248 –491
Effect of changed accounting principle related to gains on sales of real estate – –2 –3
Net income/loss as reported in the consolidated income statements 2 026 1 246 –494

Items increasing/decreasing net income/loss:
Deferred income taxes –80 77 148
Depreciation on revaluation of assets 
including effect in connection with sale 15 21 19
Capitalization of interest expense –1 3 –13
Early retirement benefits – – 13
Gains on sales of real estate – 15 2
Pensions –6 –18 –121
Forward exchange contracts 7 2 429
Sale of fixed assets – 150 –154
Changes in accounting principles SFAS 109 and 106 – – 160

Net increase/decrease in net income/loss –65 250 483
Approximate net income/loss in accordance with U.S. GAAP 1 961 1 496 –11

1995 1994 1993

Shareholders’ equity as previously published – 9 872 9 009
Effect of changes in accounting principle related to gains on sales of real estate – -500 -498

Shareholders’ equity as reported in the consolidated balance sheets 10 273 9 372 8 511

Items increasing/decreasing shareholders’ equity:
Deferred income taxes 185 258 185
Revaluation of assets –250 –275 –293
Capitalization of interest expense 59 61 58
Gains on sales of real estate – – 16
Pensions –89 –83 –66
Forward exchange contracts 31 24 23
Sale of fixed assets – – –152

Net decrease in shareholders’ equity –64 –15 –261
Approximate shareholders’ equity in accordance with U.S. GAAP 10 209 9 357 8 250

1995 1994 1993

Earnings per share, in Swedish kronor:
Earnings from continuing operations 17.35 13.25 –2.90
Earnings from discontinued operations – – 1.40
Earnings before extraordinary credit 17.35 13.25 –1.50
Extraordinary credit:
– Changes in accounting principles SFAS 109 and 106 – – 1.40
Net earnings per share in accordance with U.S. GAAP 17.35 13.25 –0.10

Weighted average number of shares outstanding 112 999 556 112 999 556 112 999 556





The following is a summary comparing the reported consolidated balance sheets with the balance sheets after approximate adjustments
to U.S. GAAP.

As recorded in the Approximate amounts after 
consolidated balance sheets adjustments to U.S. GAAP

1995 1994 1993 1995 1994 1993

Current financial assets 2 897 2 356 2 692 2 897 2 356 2 713
Inventories 8 972 8 606 9 220 8 972 8 606 9 220
Other current assets 6 800 6 911 6 427 6 800 6 911 6 427
Deferred tax assets 1 249 1 635 1 701 1 336 1 777 1 823
Investments 74 110 110 74 107 90
Property, plant and equipment 11 286 11 116 11 865 11 095 10 901 11 613
Other capital assets 1 717 1 978 2 336 2 027 2 235 2 960
Total assets 32 995 32 712 34 351 33 201 32 893 34 846

Short-term loans 1 715 2 047 2 228 1 715 2 046 2 227
Other current liabilities 7 002 6 846 7 152 6 971 7 095 7 328
Long-term loans 4 584 4 954 7 044 4 584 4 954 7 187
Pensions and other postretirement benefits 6 495 6 573 6 571 6 895 6 913 7 260
Other long-term liabilities 961 976 996 961 978 996
Deferred and current tax liabilities 1 799 1 800 1 722 1 700 1 406 1 471
Minority interest 166 144 127 166 144 127
Shareholders’ equity 10 273 9 372 8 511 10 209 9 357 8 250
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 32 995 32 712 34 351 33 201 32 893 34 846
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Investments held by Parent Company

Holding Number Nominal value Book value in
in percent of shares Currency in thousands SEK thousands

Bostadsrättsföreningen Flundran, Stockholm, Sweden 1 SEK – 1 635
Bostadsrättsföreningen Kristinelundsgatan nr 5, Göteborg, Sweden 1 SEK – 2 884
Prästgårdsmarkens villaägare,ek.fören., Göteborg, Sweden 60 SEK 60 30
Chalmers Innovation AB, Göteborg, Sweden 4.9 735 SEK 73 255
Fastighets AB Johannebergshus, Göteborg, Sweden 85 SEK 9 2 555
Göteborg-Säve Flygplats AB, Göteborg, Sweden 1 125 SEK 112 114
KB Gösen Gamlestaden 2:5, Göteborg, Sweden 1.0 – SEK 2 935 2 935
Stiftelsen Bohus Promotion, Uddevalla, Sweden – SEK 250 0
Svenska Dagbladet Holding AB, Stockholm, Sweden 18 000 SEK 180 180
SwedeChrome AB in liquidation, Malmö, Sweden 44.4 4 218 478 SEK 42 185 0
TIAB Transportköparnas Intresse AB, Göteborg, Sweden 1 000 SEK 100 0
AEC Japan Co Ltd., Japan 50.0 400 JPY 20 000 820
ADELA Investment Company, Luxemburg 2 080 USD 208 0
SIFIDA Investment Company, Luxemburg 275 USD 137 108
S2M, France 11.9 153 093 FRF 2 570 8 681
The Swedish-American Chamber of Commerce, USA 50 USD 50 318
UNIS-UTL, Bosnia-Herzegovina 23.0 – YUD 5 214 0
UNIS-Factory Sokolac, Bosnia-Herzegovina 10.0 – YUD 64 0
Svenska skolan, Belgium 20 BEF 400 0
Other shares and securities 7

20 522





Investments held by subsidiaries

Nominal value Book value in
Holdings Currency in thousands SEK thousands

Hofors Energi, Hofors, Sweden 2 000 SEK 2 000 2 000
Jernkontoret, Stockholm, Sweden 8 SEK 187 187
Gävle Sjöfarts AB, Gävle, Sweden 270 SEK 27 54
AB Järnbruksförnödenheter, Stockholm, Sweden 300 SEK 30 69
Företagshälsovården i Hofors, Sweden 500 SEK 50 50
Suomen Voimansiirto Oy, Finland 230 FIM 230 341
Elma Oy, Finland FIM 77
Industrilink A/S, Denmark DKK 60 232
Nordtransmission A/S, Denmark DKK 111 165
SIMES, Belgium 150 BEF 3 000 680
Gemeinnützige Wohnungsbaugesellschaft, Germany DEM 250 1 162
Gesellschaft z. Beseitigung v. Sondermüll in Bayern, Germany DEM 80 372
Gemeinschaftskraftwerk GmbH, Germany DEM 3 300 15 343
SKF Services, Croatia DEM 20 73
SKF Trgovina, Slovakia DEM 20 93
IPO, France FRF 100 181
Etat Ivoirien, France FRF 100 143
Expo 2000 S.p.A., Italy 20 700 ITL 207 000 156
Indesit, Italy 12 775 ITL 128 000 –
Technomag AG, Bern, Switzerland 100 CHF 100 834
RSS, Austria ATS 412 272
Shanghai SMM Textile Machinery Components Co. Ltd., China CNY 23 500 15 392
Housing Development Finance Corp. Ltd., India 2 500 INR 250 47
United Trust of India, India 3 364 080 INR 33 641 9 021
Housing Development Finance Corp. Bank Ltd., India 37 700 INR 377 71
FAIRSKQ Taiwan Co. Ltd., Taiwan 2 080 TWD 20 800 6 890
Bearhold Philippines, Philippines 400 000 PHP 10 000 124
Skefko Bearings Newcastle, Australia 12 000 AUD 12 60
Northern Bearing Distributors, Australia 2000 AUD 231 1146
Others 686

55 921

Investments held by subsidiaries 55 921
Investments held by Parent Company 20 522
Consolidation adjustment –2 935
Total investments SKF Group 73 508





Parent Company income statements

Millions of Swedish kronor 1995 1994 1993

Operations
Other operating income 63 23 203

Selling, administrative and technical expenses – 108 – 146 – 88
Depreciation note 1 – 5 – 5 – 5

Operating loss/income – 50 – 128 110

Financial income and expense
Dividend income from subsidiaries 493 445 364
Dividend income from other companies 1 0 0
Interest income 362 345 330
Interest expense – 404 – 438 – 419
Financial exchange gains and losses 7 – 1 – 30

Income after financial income and expense 409 223 355

Provisions note 2 866 338 147
Taxes – – 2

Reported income for the year 1 275 561 504





Parent Company balance sheets

Millions of Swedish kronor 1995 1994 1993

ASSETS

Current assets
Current financial assets note 3 24 6 108
Accounts receivable from consolidated subsidiaries 1 598 573 1 390
Other current assets note 4 68 47 57

1 690 626 1 555

Capital assets
Long-term receivables from consolidated subsidiaries 3 456 3 826 4 305
Other long-term receivables 3 3 16
Investments in consolidated subsidiaries note 5 7 319 7 065 6 657
Other investments note 5 21 27 42
Property, plant and equipment note 6 80 83 85

10 879 11 004 11 105

Total assets 12 569 11 630 12 660

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Short-term liabilities
Short-term loans note 7 11 12 10
Short-term liabilities to consolidated subsidiaries 1 601 1 744 1 724
Other trade accounts payable 9 9 8
Accrued expenses and deferred income 134 87 110
Other short-term liabilities 10 10 9

1 765 1 862 1 861

Long-term liabilities
Long-term loans note 8 1 965 1 709 2 337
Long-term liabilities to consolidated subsidiaries 559 603 1 455
Pensions note 9 362 342 320
Other long-term liabilities 5 5 6
Convertible bonds note 10 1 389 1 387 1 508

4 280 4 046 5 626

Untaxed reserves note 2 73 66 78

Shareholders’ equity note 11
Restricted equity
Share capital (112 999 556 shares, 
nominal value SEK 12.50 per share) 1 412 1 412 1 412

Legal reserve 455 455 455
Non-restricted earnings
Retained earnings 3 309 3 228 2 724
Reported income for the year 1 275 561 504

6 451 5 656 5 095

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 12 569 11 630 12 660

Assets pledged note 12 0 1 1
Contingent liabilities note 13 619 1 281 1 456





Parent Company statements of cash flow

Millions of Swedish kronor 1995 1994 1993

Operating loss/income before depreciation – 45 – 123 115

Group contribution and allowance for shareholders’ contribution – net 873 326 148

Changes in working capital:
Trade accounts receivable 0 0 2
Trade accounts payable 0 1 3
Other current assets and liabilities – net – 1 142 825 – 878

Cash flow from operations – 314 1 029 – 610

Additions to property, plant and equipment – 2 – 3 – 7
Changes in investments – 248 – 393 – 107

Cash flow after investments – 564 633 – 724

Financial income and expense – net 459 351 245
Taxes – – 2
Cash dividends – 480 – –
Change in loans 257 – 747 1 182
Change in other financial assets and liabilities – net 346 – 339 – 929

Change in current financial assets 18 – 102 – 224





Notes to the financial statements for the Parent Company
Amounts in millions of Swedish kronor (SEK m) unless otherwise stated.

For description of accounting principles, see note 1 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

 1 ‒ 

1995 1994 1993

Buildings 2 3 3
Machinery and equipment 3 2 2

5 5 5

  ‒    

Provisions

1995 1994 1993

Change in development reserve 0 2 1
Change in accelerated 
depreciation reserve 3 2 2

Change in other reserves –10 8 –4
–7 12 –1

Group contribution received 920 338 174
Group contribution paid – –8 –6
Allowance for shareholders’

contribution –47 –4 –20
866 338 147

Untaxed reserves

1995 1994 1993

Development reserve – 0 2
Accelerated depreciation reserve 57 60 62
Other reserves 16 6 14

73 66 78

The accelerated depreciation reserve relates to the following items:

1995 1994 1993

Land improvement 4 4 4
Buildings 21 23 24
Machinery and equipment 32 33 34

57 60 62

  ‒   

1995 1994 1993

Cash and bank accounts 24 6 8
Other short-term financial 

receivables – 0 100
24 6 108

  ‒   

1995 1994 1993

Prepaid expenses 1 1 11
Other current receivables 67 46 46

68 47 57





  ‒ 

Investments in subsidiaries are specified below. For a specification of the Parent Company’s holdings of other investments see note 27 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Investments in subsidiaries held by the Parent Company on December 31, 1995

Holding Number Nominal value Book value in
in percent of shares Currency in thousands SEK thousands

Manufacturing companies
SKF Sverige AB, Göteborg, Sweden 100 2 650 000 SEK 265 000 363 300
Ovako Steel AB, Hofors, Sweden 100 135 000 SEK 135 000 0
SKF USA Inc., Pa., USA 99.8 1 444 447 USD 72 222 770 617
SKF Österreich AG, Austria 100 200 ATS 200 000 175 958
SKF GmbH, Germany 0.1 – DEM 218 1 813
SKF Fabryka Loz

.
ysk Tocznych S.A., Poland 79.0 862 036 PLZ 17 241 43 522

SKF Specialty Products AB, Göteborg, Sweden 100 1 000 SEK 1 000 0
FlexLink Systems AB, Göteborg, Sweden 100 190 000 SEK 19 000 28 211
SKF de Mexico S.A. de C.V., Mexico 100 40 000 MXN 40 0
SKF do Brasil Limitada, Brazil 99.9 166 750 598 BRC 166 751 183 943
SKF Argentina S.A., Argentina 99.9 499 641 ARP 500 10 587
SKF Bearings India Ltd., India 42.4 1 067 248 INR 106 725 0
SKF Mekan AB, Katrineholm, Sweden 100 27 500 SEK 27 500 33 348
Lidköping Machine Tools AB, Lidköping, Sweden 100 200 000 SEK 20 000 11 832
Share subscription in SKF Automotive Bearings 
Company Limited, Peoples Republic of China 25 465

Share subscription in SKF HANWHA Automotive 
Components Corporation, Republic of Korea 19 064

Non-cash issue in SKF do Brasil Limitada, Brazil 11 654

Sales companies
SKF Danmark A/S, Denmark 100 656 DKK 15 000 0
SKF Norge A/S, Norway 100 50 000 NOK 5 000 0
Oy SKF Ab, Finland 100 48 400 FIM 12 100 12 378
SKF Portugal Rolamentos, Limitada, Portugal 95.0 – PTE 12 350 0
SKF Loz̆iska, a.s., Czech Republic 100 42 CZK 4 200 0
Akciová spolec̆nost pro prodej valivých loz̆isek, Czech Republic 100 1 000 CZK 200 0
SKF Svéd Golyóscsapágy Részvenytársaság, Hungary 100 3 000 HUF 600 14
SKF Hellas S.A., Greece 100 2 000 GRD 45 320 0
SKF Canada Limited, Canada 100 50 000 CAD – 0
SKF Colombia S.A., Colombia 13.4 279 148 COP 69 787 0
SKF del Peru S.A., Peru 100 3 383 181 PES 3 383 0
SKF Chilena S.A.I.C., Chile 100 88 192 CLP 467 923 0
SKF Venezolana S.A., Venezuela 100 4 758 VEB 4 758 1 376
SKF Türk Sanayi ve Ticaret Limited Sirketi, Turkey 0.0 50 TRL 250 1
SKF Japan Ltd., Japan 10.2 25 300 JPY 25 300 0
SKF South East Asia (Pte) Ltd., Singapore 100 1 000 000 SGD 1 000 0
SKF Australia Pty Ltd., Australia 100 96 500 AUD 193 0
SKF New Zealand Limited, New Zealand 100 375 000 NZD 750 0
SKF South Africa (Proprietary) Ltd., South Africa 100 1 422 380 ZAR 2 845 0
SKF Zimbabwe (Private) Limited, Zimbabwe 0.0 1 ZWD 0 0
SKF (Zambia) Ltd., Zambia 0.0 1 ZMK 0 0
SKF Kenya Limited, Kenya 0.0 1 KES 0 0
SKF Eurotrade AB, Göteborg, Sweden 100 83 500 SEK 8 350 10 169
SKF Multitec AB, Helsingborg, Sweden 100 29 500 SEK 2 950 4 545





Investments in subsidiaries held by the Parent Company on December 31, 1995

Holding Number Nominal value Book value in
in percent of shares Currency in thousands SEK thousands

Other companies
SKF Bearings Ltd., United Kingdom 100 10 000 GBP 10 0
Trelanoak Ltd., United Kingdom 20.0 6 965 000 GBP 6 965 119 817
SKF Holding Maatschappij Holland B.V., The Netherlands 100 60 000 NLG 60 000 4 735 834
SKF Engineering & Research Services B.V., The Netherlands 13.4 121 NLG 12 7 684
SKF Verwaltungs AG, Switzerland 100 500 CHF 250 501 898
SKF Holding Mexicana, S.A. de C.V., Mexico 98.0 22 934 233 MXN 2 293 120 029
Barseco (Pty) Ltd, South Africa 100 100 ZAR 0 0
SKF Australia (Manufacturing) Pty. Ltd., Australia 100 1 000 000 AUD 2 000 0
Compania SKF Nicaragua S.A., Nicaragua 100 140 NIC 140 0
Latinoamericana de Administracion S.A., Panama 100 50 USD 5 0
SKF Lager AB, Göteborg, Sweden 100 150 000 SEK 3 000 0
SKF Vehicle Parts AB, Göteborg, Sweden 100 115 000 SEK 11 500 13 872
Nordiska Kullager Aktiebolaget, Göteborg, Sweden 100 500 SEK 50 51
AB SKF-Agenturer, Göteborg, Sweden 100 100 SEK 100 0
SKF Distribution AB, Göteborg, Sweden 100 80 000 SEK 6 400 9 760
AB Compania Sudamericana SKF, Göteborg, Sweden 100 300 SEK 300 0
AB S.A. des Roulements à Billes Suédois SKF, Göteborg, Sweden 100 100 SEK 100 0
The Chinese SKF Co. AB, Göteborg, Sweden 100 1 000 SEK 100 0
SKF Treasury Centre AB, Göteborg, Sweden 100 20 000 SEK 20 000 19 995
Återförsäkringsaktiebolaget SKF, Göteborg, Sweden 100 30 000 SEK 30 000 80 200
The Indonesian SKF Corporation AB, Göteborg, Sweden 100 1 000 SEK 100 0
SKF Fondförvaltning AB, Göteborg, Sweden 100 2 500 SEK 250 248
AB Svenska Kullagerfabriken, Göteborg, Sweden 100 500 SEK 50 51
SKF Dataservice AB, Göteborg, Sweden 100 500 SEK 50 0
SKF Nova AB, Göteborg, Sweden 100 500 SEK 50 0
AB Transmatic, Göteborg, Sweden 100 500 SEK 50 51
SKF Förvaltning AB, Göteborg, Sweden 100 125 000 SEK 12 500 51
AB SKF Etthundratjugotvå, Göteborg, Sweden 100 500 SEK 50 51
AB SKF Etthundratjugotre, Göteborg, Sweden 100 500 SEK 50 51
AB SKF Etthundratjugofyra, Göteborg, Sweden 100 500 SEK 50 51
AB SKF Etthundratjugofem, Göteborg, Sweden 100 500 SEK 50 51
SKF Bearing Industries AB, Göteborg, Sweden 100 500 SEK 50 51
Byggnadsaktiebolaget Åsen, Göteborg, Sweden 100 500 SEK 50 60
SKF Fastighetsförvaltning AB, Göteborg, Sweden 100 2 000 SEK 200 245
SKF Support AB, Göteborg, Sweden 100 2 000 SEK 200 245
Ovako Comptech AB, Göteborg, Sweden 100 500 SEK 50 48
Ovako Ring AB, Göteborg, Sweden 100 1 000 SEK 100 99
Ovako Metallurgy AB, Göteborg, Sweden 100 500 SEK 50 60
Ovako Tube AB, Göteborg, Sweden 100 5 000 SEK 500 600
Ovako Metech AB, Göteborg, Sweden 100 500 SEK 50 27
NASAB Nordisk Analysservice AB, Göteborg, Sweden 100 2 000 SEK 200 200

7 319 177





  ‒ ,    

1995 1994 1993
Acquisi- Accumu- Acquisi- Accumu- Acquisi- Accumu-
tion cost lated depr. tion cost lated depr. tion cost lated depr.

Land 6 – 6 – 5 –
Land improvements 2 1 2 1 2 1
Buildings 110 72 109 70 107 67
Machinery and equipment 72 37 71 34 71 32

190 110 188 105 185 100
Net 80 83 85

Land, land improvements and buildings have been assessed for
tax purposes on December 31, 1995 as follows:

Cost less
Assessed accumulated
tax value depreciation

Land and land improvements 41 7
Buildings 151 38

192 45

  ‒ - 

1995 1994 1993

Current portion of long-term loans 11 12 10
11 12 10

  ‒ - 

Long-term loans at the end of the year, excluding the current
portion were:

1995 1994 1993

Bonds 1 346 1 441 1 795
Bank loans 366 – –
Other borrowings 253 268 542

1 965 1 709 2 337

The above loans were denominated in the following currencies:

1995 1994 1993

Swedish kronor 448 155 270
United States dollars 1 407 1 441 2 067
Spanish pesetas 110 113 –

1 965 1 709 2 337

Maturities of long-term loans as at December 31, 1995 are as
follows:

1997 10
1998 10
1999 749
2000 9
2001 8
2002 and thereafter 1 179

1 965

The terms of certain loan agreements contain various restric-
tions, relating principally to further pledging of assets.

  ‒ 

Charges against income in 1995, 1994 and 1993 for pensions and
similar plans were 56, 54 and 35 respectively. 277, 269, 253 of
the total pension liability in 1995, 1994 and 1993 respectively,
are referable to pensions in the FPG-PRI (Pension Registration
Institute) system.

 1 ‒  

See note 20 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

 11 ‒   

The distribution of the share capital between share types is
shown in note 21 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Changes in shareholders’ equity

Non-re-
Share Legal stricted

capital reserve earnings Total

Opening balance 1993-01-01 1 412 455 2 724 4 591
Reported income for the year 504 504
Closing balance 1993-12-31 1 412 455 3 228 5 095

Reported income for the year 561 561
Closing balance 1994-12-31 1 412 455 3 789 5 656

Cash dividends –480 –480
Reported income for the year 1 275 1 275
Closing balance 1995-12-31 1 412 455 4 584 6 451





 1 ‒  

1995 1994 1993

Mortgages in leasehold, land 0 1 1
0 1 1

 1 ‒  

1995 1994 1993

Guarantees in respect of 
SKF subsidiaries’ obligations 575 1 232 1 385

Other guarantees and 
contingent liabilities 44 49 71

619 1 281 1 456

 1 ‒    ,  ,
  

Number of employees, wages and salaries per country:

Number of Wages and
employees salaries in

Women Men Total SEK thousands

Sweden (Göteborg) 52 95 147 84 707*
Total employees, wages 
and salaries 52 95 147 84 707

* The amount includes wages, salaries and remunerations to the
Board of Directors, Presidents and Vice Presidents of the Parent
Company, amounting to SEK 12 205 000, of which SEK
3 057 000 are bonus payments. For specific information regard-
ing salaries and remuneration to the Chairman of the Board, the
President and others see note 25 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

For a definition of average number of employees see note 1 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.





SKF’s overall financial objective is to pro-
vide its shareholders with a sustainable
and market-comparable return on their
investment. Over the long term, this
should exceed the risk-free interest rate by
some percentage points, divided between
dividends and value growth.

The Group’s objectives, which are long
term and should be viewed as an average
over a business cycle, are as follows:
• generation of gross cash flow, measured

as operating income before depreciation,
amounting to 15 percent of invoiced
sales.

• attaining a return on capital employed of
15 percent.

These objectives are combined with the
follow-up of capital utilization and the
capital turnover rate.

Financial position

A strong financial position and a healthy
credit rating are essential prerequisites for
attaining favorable long-term growth and
profitability. This also contributes to stabi-
lizing share value.

SKF’s objective is that the Company’s
solvency shall amount to 35 percent.

Dividend policy

The Group’s policy regarding the dividend
paid to shareholders is based on the
premise that dividends be adapted over
time to earnings performance and cash
flow, taking into account the Company’s
development potential and financial
position. 

The Board of Directors’ opinion is that
the dividend should amount to approxi-
mately one third of average net income
over a business cycle.

Financial risks

SKF’s operations are exposed to financial
risks. As a result of the extensive geograph-
ical spread of operations, with manufactur-
ing units in many countries, the Group has
a complex and changing but nonetheless
basically diversified risk structure.

SKF has established a finance policy that
clearly defines currency, interest-rate and
credit risks and establishes responsibilities
and authority for the management of finan-
cial risks. Management of these risks and
of treasury operations as a whole is largely
centralized to SKF Treasury Centre AB.

The finance policy expresses the pri-
mary objective of avoiding or reducing
risks and also to contribute to the improve-
ment of financial return through an active
management of risks.

Currency risks

The SKF Group’s principal commercial
flows of currencies pertain to exports from
Europe to North America and Asia and to
the flow of goods within Europe. Long-
term, it is advantageous to maintain a bal-
ance between manufacturing and sales
within the European, American and Asian
zones.

SKF has flows in approximately 20
different currencies. The flow of goods
exceeds SEK 20 billion. Following the off-
setting of flows in the same currency, the
net flow amounts to approximately SEK
7 billion. At present, because of the large
amounts involved, which can vary, how-
ever, the principal currency flows that may
have a major impact on SKF’s earnings are
inflows in USD and DEM and outflows in
SEK and ITL. For these currencies, the
approximately 10-percent changes in
exchange rates, which have become nor-
mal variations during recent years, can
affect Group income by a few hundred
million Swedish kronor during the course
of a year. The exact amount depends on
the actual flow and changes in the mutual
relationships between the currencies.

SKF’s policy is to hedge currency flows
for an average of four months, which
under the current conditions is deemed to
be the period required to adjust to new
conditions. SKF Treasury Centre AB is
permitted, within the framework of its
established risk limits, to make significant
deviations from this average period. Risks
are managed on the basis of a risk-evalua-
tion system which takes into account both
the volatility of the currencies and their
mutual relationship.

The SKF Group’s earnings are also
affected by translation effects, meaning
translation of the income of foreign sub-
sidiaries into SEK. An approximately 10-
percent change in the exchange rate for the
SEK can also affect Group income by a
few hundred million Swedish kronor,
depending upon the countries where
income was generated, and upon the
change in the value of these currencies in
relation to the SEK.

SKF’s main competitors have the
greater part of their manufacturing capac-

ity in Germany, the U.S. and Japan. Cur-
rency changes affecting these countries’
cost situation primarily in relation to Swe-
den, Italy and France, where SKF, in addi-
tion to Germany and the U.S., has substan-
tial manufacturing operations, affects
SKF’s competitiveness in relation to these
competitors. In other words, those changes
in exchange rates that have occurred dur-
ing recent years, in the form of a weaker
SEK and ITL, have to date benefited SKF.

Interest-rate risks

SKF’s basic policy for fixing interest-rate
periods is that the average duration shall
be six months. This applies to both bor-
rowing and the investment of funds and
also includes the use of derivative instru-
ments.

The interest-rate portfolio has a diversi-
fied composition and normal changes in
interest-rates are not considered to have
any significant impact on Group income.

Credit risks

The credit risks that arise as a result of
trading in financial instruments and in
connection with the investment of liquid
funds are carefully defined in the finance
policy. Transactions are only conducted
within established limits and with counter-
parties who have sound credit ratings.

Financing

SKF’s policy is that operations shall be
financed through long-term borrowing.
Those loans required to finance antici-
pated needs shall have a duration exceed-
ing three years.

In addition to this financing, the finance
policy states that the Group shall have a
payment capacity, in the form of surplus
liquidity and/or long-term credit facilities,
amounting to approximately USD 250 m.
During 1994 and 1995, the Group’s credit
facilities for payment capacity were
restructured whereby durations were
extended and terms standardized. The
Parent Company’s credit facilities, accord-
ing to this standardized model, amounted
to USD 240 m at year-end, distributed
among six banks.

Financial objectives and risk management









Bearings

European sales of both passenger cars
and trucks were favorable through-
out 1994 and at the beginning of

1995. This led to continued strong demand
for rolling bearings and pressure on the SKF
production facilities. Demand from the
machinery segment showed no signs of
abating. Sales in the after-market exceeded
the preceding year’s levels but stagnated. 

During the second quarter of the year,
however, demand from the passenger car
industry started to decline. Sales of new cars
were no longer increasing and remained at
an unchanged level. Truck sales continued
to develop favorably, on the other hand.
Demand also increased within the machin-
ery segment.

As the year progressed, the weakening
growth scenario was confirmed and SKF’s
deliveries leveled off. Towards the end of
the year a further weakening was noticed.
Major volume customers outside the auto-
motive industry, such as the white goods
sector, also came to a standstill, with no fur-
ther growth. The after-market weakened
slightly, while the machinery segment con-
tinued to develop positively.

SKF’s sales to car manufacturers in the
U.S. were not affected by the generally
weaker trend within the automotive industry
during the year. The U.S. machinery seg-
ment also developed positively, while the
after-market weakened.

The SKF Group’s sales of rolling bearings
increased by slightly more than 8 percent
during the year. This meant that the heavy
pressure on the Group’s production facilities
continued. Certain problems were encoun-
tered due to delivery times being too long.
Overtime and a redistribution of production
aimed at resolving acute customer problems
led to a negative cost trend. Service levels
were also affected.

SKF strengthened its position as the
leading supplier to the European
automotive industry

In Europe, sales of new cars in 1995 only
barely exceeded the level achieved in the

preceding year, despite the strong start of
the year. Production followed the same
pattern, but at a higher level, since some
production is exported to markets outside
Europe.

The increase in SKF’s sales in Europe
was greater than that of the market as a
whole, which further strengthened the
Group’s position as the leading supplier to
the European automotive industry. The suc-
cesses achieved derived from new contracts
signed with major customers, such as Opel
Vectra/Astra, Mercedes Benz, Audi and
Fiat, for all of which deliveries commenced
during 1995.

SKF is the largest supplier of bearings to
the Fiat Bravo/Brava, four/five-door model,
which received its market launch in 1995
and was also chosen European Car of the
Year. Fiat’s success meant that the SKF
Group was the main supplier of bearings to
Europe’s Car of the Year for the tenth con-
secutive year.

In the U.S., new car sales did not match
the level of the preceding year. However,
SKF’s sales were not affected by this down-
turn and continued to increase during 1995.
Here again, this was due to the Group’s
deliveries to new models, at Chrysler and
Ford. During the year, production of Hub
Units commenced for the Chrysler Voyager
at the SKF plant in Glasgow, Kentucky,
where an additional production channel for
Hub Units was placed in operation.

New truck business in Europe and
the U.S. contributed to increased
market shares

Truck sales developed strongly during most
of the year. This trend did not weaken until
towards the end of the year. The rapid and
strong growth experienced in the trucks sec-
tor since 1993, placed bearings suppliers in
a highly difficult situation since the increase
was stronger than expected. However, SKF
was able to deliver the necessary bearings
throughout this period thanks to the close
cooperation with customers and the inherent
flexibility in production. Access to its own
steel from Ovako Steel and an efficiently
functioning channelized manufacturing sys-
tem were decisive factors.

SKF’s sales increase in the trucks seg-
ment was also greater than the market
increase, which meant that the Group

Rolling bearings is the Group’s largest product area, and accounted for 84 percent
of total sales in 1995.

The product program includes a large variety of ball and roller bearings, special
bearings, tools for the mounting and dismounting of bearings, lubricants, measuring
and monitoring instruments, as well as engineering advisory services and training.

The manufacturing is conducted at more than 40 facilities in approximately 20
countries. Sales is made through a large number of wholly owned sales companies
which are supported by approximately 10 000 distributors and dealers worldwide.

Sales by
application field 

Sales by
geographical area 

Vehicle
replacement 5%

Industrial
distributors

29%

Cars
16%

Trucks 8%

End-users 6%

Aero-
space 3%

Railways 2%

Heavy
industry 8%

General
machinery
17%

Electrical 
industry 6%

Sweden 5%

Europe
excl.

Sweden
56%

 
North
America
18%

Rest of the
world 21%

Bearings

SEK m 1995 1994 1993

Net sales 31 003 28 168 24 767
Income/loss after financial income and expense 2 804 1 499 –200
Additions to property, plant and equipment 1 933 1 143 801
Number of employees registered 35 096 35 016 35 098







improved its market share. New contracts
were signed with Germany’s MAN, who
will now begin to use SKF’s Hub Units in its
trucks. SKF also started delivering these
Truck Hub Units to Scania, which is equip-
ping its new Scania 4 series with the units.
This model was selected Truck of the Year
in 1995.

SKF’s Truck Hub Unit is a maintenance-
free bearing unit, with taper rollers, which is
starting to be used increasingly by leading
truck manufacturers in both Europe and the
U.S.

Despite a significant weakening as early
as mid-year, the truck market in the U.S.
noted a record level in 1995. During the
year, truck-axle manufacturer Rockwell
launched a new front non-drive steer axle
featuring the SKF Truck Hub Unit with an
integrated flange. As of 1996, this axle will
be delivered to major truck manufactures in
the U.S. This is the first time that such a
Truck Hub Unit has been used for this kind
of application in the United States.

Favorable growth in several markets
within the machinery segment

Demand from the machinery segment
increased during most of the year and SKF’s
sales volume rose by a double-digit percent-
age figure, compared with 1994. The trend
was similar in both the European and U.S.
main markets, although the rate of growth
was higher in Europe. The strongest markets
were Germany, Italy, Spain and Sweden.
The U.K. and France recorded relatively
weaker trends.

One of the reasons for SKF’s successes
within the machinery segment was the close
cooperation established between skilled
application engineers and customers to ana-
lyze bearing problems and find optimal cus-
tomized solutions.

Such skills are also being exploited in the
cultivation of the eastern European market,
where sales increased by approximately 50
percent, compared with the preceding year.
The most important markets are Poland,
Hungary and the Czech Republic.

Demand for high-precision bearings
remained strong throughout the fiscal year
and no signs of a weakening of the trend
could be detected in this segment. Efforts
focused exclusively on maintaining deliver-
ies, since growth exceeded 30 percent dur-
ing 1995.

The fastest growing markets are Italy and
the U.S., but SKF is also capturing shares in
the Japanese market. The most important

customer category is the machine tool man-
ufacturers, where high-precision bearings
are decisive to machine performance. The
fastest growth was noted for hybrid bear-
ings, meaning angular contact ball bearings,
for which the rings are produced in steel,
while the balls are made of ceramic mater-
ial.

Demand for the Group’s Y-bearings
strengthened during the year in the Asian
region, while leveling out in Europe as from
mid-year. Specially developed seals in com-
bination with a lubricant to assure particu-
larly long product life provide SKF’s Y-
bearings with a strong position in terms of
supplying very demanding customer seg-
ments within agriculture, forestry and the
food industries. A new bearing with a zinc
coating to resist corrosion was introduced in
the market and strengthens the product
range.

A new market was opened to SKF for its
Y-bearings in December 1995 when the
Group obtained an order from Cargo Centre
London Heathrow, for 50 000 Y-bearings.
SKF had engaged in a close and intensive
cooperation program with the supplier of
cargo centers for some time, which resulted
in a new design, better adapted to the needs
of the end-customer. 

Jointly with SKF, one of the world’s lead-
ing producers of fork-lifts, Jungheinrich in
Germany, has developed an electronic con-
trol system based on SKF’s deep groove ball
bearings, with integrated sensors, which has
enabled the customer to reduce his overall
costs. During 1995, SKF received an initial
order for 10 000 bearing units.

German railway investment 
gave SKF major order

At the end of 1994, the Deutsche Bahnen,
the German Rail Administration, placed the
largest order for rolling stock since the end
of the Second World War. The order
includes nearly 900 electric locomotives of
completely new generations. In October
1995, SKF received an order for all of the
railway axlebox equipment for these loco-
motives, with delivery during the next ten
years. The axleboxes are equipped with
SKF’s newly designed range of sealed cylin-
drical bearing units from the Group’s plant
in Schweinfurt.

High capacity utilization in 
both of SKF’s Indian plants

One of the important SKF markets to
develop strongly during 1995 was India.
SKF has a slightly more than one-third
share of this rapidly growing market. Two
plants, one in Pune and another in Banga-
lore, form the base for the Group’s leading
position in India.

As in many other countries, the expand-
ing automotive industry is an important cus-
tomer category in India. 

SKF also occupies a strong position as a
supplier of bearings to the extensive “two-
and three-wheeler market”, consisting of for
instance motorcycles with three wheels,
which are used as taxies.

Products requiring bearings in India
include motorcycles and white goods, which
are growing more rapidly than the country’s
economic growth rate and for SKF’s part,
this has led to high capacity utilization in
both plants.

In South Africa, an investment program
to modernize the Group’s plant in Uitenhage
is now in progress following many years of
investment sanctions. This plant has been
assigned responsibility for the Group’s pro-
duction of special bearings for the mining
industry. Sales are developing favorably in
the growing South African market.

Demand in Argentina started to decline
during the second quarter of the year but
stabilized towards the end of the year fol-
lowing a volume downturn of approximately
25 percent. The strong growth in the Brazil-
ian market decelerated as a result of the
credit restrictions introduced to dampen
overheating in the country’s economy. 

Upturn in demand for aircraft
bearings boosted MRC Bearings

Following several weak years, demand for
aircraft-engine bearings started to improve
during 1995. Accordingly, SKF’s U.S. com-
pany, MRC Bearings, posted improved sales
and earnings during the year. The Channel
concept started to be introduced with the
aim of reducing lead times and raising pro-
duction flexibility.

During the year, deliveries of bearings
were increased for the engines on the
Boeing 777, for which SKF is the principal
supplier of main shaft bearings.

SKF was successful during the weak
years in holding and even strengthening its
position in the market as the world’s leading
supplier of aircraft bearings.





Also in Europe, demand is accelerating
again and SKF’s French aircraft-components
company, SARMA, showed favorable
growth. An extensive restructuring program
was initiated within the SARMA group,
which consists of three plants in France and
one in the U.K. This resulted in one of the
French plants, in Serves-sur-Rhone, being
closed down. The remaining French plants
are located in Saint-Vallier-sur-Rhone and
Lons-le-Saunier.

FlexLink gains access to
“clean rooms”

FlexLink Systems AB continued to report
substantial growth figures and there was no
sign of any weakening in demand for the
company’s products. 

A new, highly demanding segment for
FlexLink is so-called clean rooms. The pro-
duction of certain components for the elec-
tronics industry requires access to rooms
which are extremely sterile. Such rooms
must be completely devoid of all foreign
matter and free of static electricity. FlexLink
has developed conveyor belts that meet
these extremely high requirements, thereby
opening a new market. 

Textile machinery components
consolidates its position with new
products

The restructuring of operations within Tex-
tile Machinery Components, involving the
relocation of substantial production capacity
from Europe to Asia, continued during
1995.

SKF’s position as one of the world’s lead-
ing suppliers of key components for textile
machinery was consolidated during the year
through the introduction of new products
which provided spinning mills with substan-
tial quality and efficiency gains. One of the
new products was a bearing unit for spin-
ning spindles with a noise level which is sig-
nificantly lower than in earlier products.

Centralized ball production and
process changes led to higher
quality and efficiency

With the exception of balls, the production of
components, such as balls, rollers, cages,
rings, etc., has largely been based on local
supply at each factory. To increase efficiency
and achieve better overall economy, this
structure is currently being reviewed.











As a result of efforts to produce all of the
SKF balls used in various types of ball bear-
ings in just one location, Pinerolo in Italy,
significant quality improvements were
achieved as a result of changes made in the
manufacturing process. Additional new
processes are now being introduced and sev-
eral channels based on the new processes
are already in operation. As a result of con-
centrating production, the changes need
only be implemented in one place to gain
the full benefit. The new processes are based
on a new, internally developed ball-produc-
tion technique that results in reduced pro-
cessing times, less waste and lower costs.

The measures implemented at Pinerolo can
be briefly described as follows:
• Channel concept introduced in ball

production
• Throughput times reduced from 13 to

3 days
• Number of operations per channel cut

from 23 to 12
• Number of machines per channel reduced

from 73 to 49
• Number of employees per channel

decreased from 54 to 18.

Within the area of cages, work is also in
progress to introduce new production tech-
nologies and review the structure in order to
improve cost trends. Here too, the number
of operations in the manufacturing area is
being reduced at the same time as measures
are in progress to achieve a standardization
of raw materials.

Widespread efforts are also in hand to
introduce new technologies in the produc-
tion of rollers, with the aim of improving
costs, raising quality and decreasing the
number of operations.

Coordination of purchasing to
provide considerable cost
reductions

A review of the Group’s purchasing func-
tions was initiated during the year and a
structure based on a few purchasing points
in different parts of the world is gradually
taking shape. By securing deliveries to the
Group’s production plants in a more effec-
tive way, it will be possible to significantly
reduce total purchasing costs.

High capacity utilization and
productivity improvements in
production

The increase in shipments led to further pro-
duction increases in the Group’s plants dur-
ing 1995. Capacity utilization was high
throughout the year and in most cases the
higher volumes could be achieved without
having to hire new employees. Pressure on
the plants was quite uniformly distributed
and most units were also able to achieve
productivity improvements. Parallel with the
increased production volumes, the Group
continued to improve the structure of its
manufacturing organization, meaning that
all European production of cylindrical roller
bearings is now concentrated to Schweinfurt
in Germany and production of all angular
contact ball bearings to Steyr in Austria.

A number of new channels for the pro-
duction of extremely quiet ball bearings
were placed in operation during the year in
France and Italy. These bearings are used in
the electric motors for fans and dishwashers.

The rolling bearings market

During the year, SKF strengthened its posi-
tion as the world’s leading bearing company.
Establishing market shares at a global level
is becoming increasingly difficult and com-
plex, since the only way to actually measure
market share is through sales. Measure-
ments based on unit volumes or tonnage are
misleading. However, the problem with
measuring market share based on sales is
that when a currency appreciates sharply,
the market involved also increases in impor-
tance, as do the production companies in
that country. During the past years, SKF has
noted this trend as the Japanese currency
has strengthened against the rest of the
world. Without in any way increasing its
consumption of rolling bearings, this has
expanded the global share represented by
the Japanese market and also the Japanese
producers’ share of the world market.

In order to gain an equitable and better
view of SKF’s position as a bearing com-
pany, the Group’s position is shown per
region. In Europe, SKF’s market share is
estimated to be approximately one third,
which gives the Group a clearly leading
position. In second and third place are the
German companies, INA and FAG. SKF is
approximately twice as large as its closest
competitor. As individual brands, Japanese
bearing producers do not occupy a strong
position in Europe. If, however, all of the

Japanese producers are viewed collectively,
they hold about one sixth of the European
market.

In the North American market, the U.S.
company Timken is the market leader, fol-
lowed by another American company, Tor-
rington (a division of Ingersoll Rand), and
SKF. Timken’s share is probably not higher
than one fifth of the market, while SKF
holds about 12 percent, and is almost as
large as Torrington. Combined, the Japanese
producers have a share of slightly more than
one fifth.

With regard to Latin America, Africa and
the Middle East, SKF’s share is approxi-
mately one third and the Group is therefore
the clear market leader. Following SKF,
comes FAG and Timken. In Asian markets,
SKF is also the single largest brand outside
Japan, followed by two Japanese producers,
NSK and NTN.

In Japan, SKF has doubled its market
share in recent years and currently holds one
percent of this market. SKF is Japan’s lead-
ing importer of bearings. Combined, the two
largest Japanese bearing producers, NSK
and NTN, have slightly more than 60 per-
cent of the Japanese market.

If the world market is divided into recog-
nized customer segments, such as passenger
cars, trucks, the after-market, machinery,
railways, etc., SKF holds a leading position
within all segments with the exception of
electric motors.

No significant shifts occurred between
the main producers during the 1995 fiscal
year. This is not unusual, to the extent
changes do occur, the shifts can be mea-
sured in fractions of a percentage point.

The three largest companies in the indus-
try are SKF, NSK and NTN.

With the launch of CARB™, the new
type of bearing presented by SKF in 1995,
the Group strengthened its position as the
world-leading technological innovator in the
bearings field. Since SKF was founded on
the invention of the self-aligning ball bear-
ing in 1907, all of the new types of bearings
introduced in the market subsequently have
come from SKF. At intervals, these types
have been further developed through the
addition of new variants and new designs.
In this area as well, SKF holds a leading
position. This is exemplified by the fact that
the Hub Unit solution based on a perma-
nently sealed and lubricated wheel bearing
unit, which is used in most of today’s pas-
senger cars, was originally developed by
SKF and has subsequently been copied by
other bearing producers.









Seals

The trend of SKF Group’s seals
business during 1995 was favor-
able. Through the acquisition of

the German seal manufacturer Goetze
Elastomere GmbH, which is now called
CR Elastomere GmbH, SKF’s seals divi-
sion began 1995 operations with a con-
siderably stronger base. Sales were up 12
percent during the year, with earnings
increasing by SEK 111 m to SEK 229 m.

In the North American market, CR
strengthened its leading position as a sup-
plier of oil seals. However, conditions var-
ied among the various customer segments.
The company experienced strong growth
in both the industrial and automotive after-
markets, while demand in the OEM manu-
facturing segment slowed in pace with
declining sales. CR, which in 1994 suc-
ceeded in becoming a supplier to one of
the U.S.’s major distributors in the automo-
tive after-market, NAPA, further strength-
ened its position by also securing NAPA’s
Canadian business. The cultivation of the
automotive industry’s distributor chains
was also intense during 1995 and resulted
in new business that included the AMA
group among important customers.

To develop successfully in the heavy
vehicles segment, sales to the major trans-
portation companies are of central impor-
tance. During the year, CR concluded a
number of agreements whereby the com-
pany became a priority supplier to freight
forwarders such as J B Hunt, Yellow
Freight and the privately owned Wal-Mart
company.

CR also received the Trailblazer prize
during the year, which the Power Trans-
mission Distribution Association in the
U.S. awards annually to companies contin-
ually demonstrating the highest quality,
innovation and creativity. Another
approach that CR has chosen to strengthen
its market position is to conclude alliance
agreements with leading manufacturers of
various components for the U.S. automo-
tive industry. The company has such
agreements with Axilok, a leading manu-
facturer of wheel accessories in North

America, and Holset, which manufactures
pneumatic systems and compressors.

The trend among major automotive cus-
tomers is toward sealing systems that seal
the entire engine. Accordingly, CR has
formed a consortium, Powertrain Sealing
Technologies (PST), with two other com-
panies possessing different expertise. This
group concluded an agreement with
Chrysler during 1995 to produce sealing
systems for Chrysler’s future 3.7 and 4.7
liter engines.

Through the acquisition of Goetze Elas-
tomere, CR has access to valve stem seals
and Rotostat® crankshaft seals, new prod-
ucts which stimulated considerable interest
in the North American market. Through its
ability to offer a new total assortment, CR
was awarded GM Engine’s business prize
during the year.

The trend of SKF’s European bearing
seal company, RFT S.p.A, was also posi-
tive during the year, due in part to
increased deliveries to SKF bearing plants

but also through increased deliveries to
Fiat, which enjoyed a strong trend.

During the year, RFT obtained two new
major customers in its shock-absorber seal
segment, Brazilian Cofap and the Czech
company Ateso. The latter was recently
acquired by American Monroe.

RFT also has an oil seals operation
which developed strongly during the year,
particularly with regard to deliveries for
tractors and other agricultural equipment.

The coordination between RFT, CR in
the U.S. and CR Elastomere in Germany
proceeds smoothly, and includes product
exchanges, production transfers and cus-
tomer cultivation, which is a solid founda-
tion for the Group’s continued develop-
ment in the seals area.

Seals accounted for approximately 8 percent of SKF Group sales during 1995.
In addition to bearing seals, the product assortment includes seals for different

kinds of engines, transmissions, shock absorbers, propeller shafts, hydraulic
applications, etc.

Seals are manufactured at 11 wholly owned plants in the U.S. and Europe and
two joint ventures, in Mexico and Japan. Sales is conducted through the Seals
Division sales companies, the SKF sales organization and through distributors.
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Seals

SEK m 1995 1994 1993

Net sales 3 456 3 099 2 752
Income after financial income and expense 229 118 33
Additions to property, plant and equipment 120 73 46
Number of employees registered 3 681 3 310 3 105



Special steels



For Ovako Steel, the year was char-
acterized by continued efforts to
concentrate operations toward

becoming a special steels company for
rolling bearing steel and steel for other
particularly exacting application areas. At
the same time, improved profitability was
reported.

Demand for Ovako Steel’s products was
strong at the beginning of the year but
weakened during the third quarter. This
was partly due to customer inventory
reductions. 

Almost 60 percent of Ovako Steel’s
sales were made to the SKF Group’s dif-
ferent plants, representing a slight increase
from preceding years. Other important
customer categories include other rolling
bearing manufacturers, the automotive
industry which uses the steel for compo-
nents in engines, transmissions and shafts,
the mining industry where the steel is used
in rock drills and equipment, and the gen-

eral machinery industries where workabil-
ity and strength requirements are highly
exacting.

During 1995, the company structure
was altered through the relocation of the
heavy bar mill from Hällefors to Hofors
and supplementing the medium bar mill in
Hällefors with three new pairs of rollers.
The latter investment enables the mill to
use larger billet dimensions.

The relocation of the heavy bar mill,
which took place during the second and
third quarters, temporarily had a negative
impact on Ovako Steel’s earnings, since
relocation and start-up took longer than
anticipated. The relocation will yield
annual savings of about SEK 80 m
through increased productivity as a conse-
quence of improved hot flow and quality
and more efficient internal transport.

The new hot scarfing plant, which burns
away a few millimeters of billet surface, is

providing the anticipated quality improve-
ment with regard to surface cracking.

The concentration on rolling bearing
steel and steel users with particularly
exacting requirements also resulted in the
divestment during the year of the Cromax
division and the sales companies in the
Nordic region, Italy and the Netherlands.
In all cases, the sales companies will
become dealers for Ovako Steel’s products
in the external market. Ovako Steel’s sales
organization has thereby been reduced to
some 50 employees compared with almost
400 employees earlier.

Steel production at Ovako Steel in
Hofors increased during the year to an
annualized level of 450 000 tons after per-
mission had been obtained from the
authorities. As a consequence, the steel
mill produced approximately 430 000 tons
of steel during 1995. In addition, about
40 000 tons of continuously cast steel was
purchased from external suppliers for bar
rolling in Hällefors and tube rolling in
Hofors.

Ovako Steel introduced a new program
during the year aimed at further rational-
ization of operations. The program
includes measures affecting the organiza-
tion, preventive maintenance, reduced
inventories, QA activities and further
automation.

Ovako Steel is the world’s leading manufacturer of rolling bearing steel and a
major producer of other special steels. Its manufacturing program includes hot-
rolled steel and cold-finished steel products in the form of bars, tube and wire.
In addition, the company produces rolled rings, forged components and OK
couplings. The most important customer segments are the rolling bearing industry,
the automotive industry, suppliers to the automotive industry, and general
machinery industries.

Ovako Steel has manufacturing units in Sweden, France, the U.K. and the
United States. Steel production operations are confined to Hofors, in Sweden.
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Special steels

SEK m 1995 1994 1993

Net sales 4 168 3 758 2 891
Income/loss after financial income and expense 297 188 –351
Additions to property, plant and equipment 210 129 80
Number of employees registered 3 273 3 330 3 112









Shares and shareholders
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PRICE DEVELOPMENT OF THE SKF B SHARE

SEK SEK

1991 1992 1993 1994 1995

Distribution of shares as per 31 December, 1995
London Genève Zürich
(1928) (1935) (1985)

Stockholm Paris Basel New York
(1916) (1929) (1985) (1985)

A shares, unrestricted 49 256 332 •
B shares, unrestricted 63 743 224 • • • • • • •

Total 112 999 556

Year of introduction on respective stock exchange is indicated within brackets.

The designations A and B indicate the voting power of the share. An A share has one vote
and a B share has one-thousandth of one vote.

The SKF share is traded in the USA through the NASDAQ system via American
Depositary Receipts (ADR).

Changes in share capital 1982–1995
Amount paid Share capital Number of shares 

SEK m SEK m in millions

1982  Bonus issue 1:4 1 350 27.0
1989  Split 4:1 1 350 108.0
1990  Conversion of debentures 62 1 412 113.0

Trading in SKF shares
Number of shares

Year Stockholm London Stockholm, SEK m

1991 27 212 000 38 896 000 2 659
1992 44 497 000 81 900 000 4 064
1993 69 120 000 92 532 000 6 940
1994 94 423 000 99 666 000 13 129
1995 89 040 000 72 060 000 12 414

Source: Stockholm Stock Exchange, London Stock Exchange





  

Share savings fund for employees

SKF Allemansfond, a savings fund in which SKF employees in
Sweden can save, was started in April 1984. Most of the means
of the fund have been invested in SKF shares. On December 31,
1995, the SKF Allemansfond had 785 members and assets
amounting to SEK 53 millions.

Convertible bonds

In May, 1992, AB SKF issued zero coupon convertible bonds
amounting to ECU 145 million after an 8.75 percent discount.
At full conversion, 7 122 928 B shares will be issued. Total
shares will thereafter be 120 122 484 whereof 49 256 332
A shares and 70 866 152 B shares. (See note 20 – Convertible
bonds.)

Distribution of shareholding

Number of shareholders Percent Number of shares Percent

1– 1 000 37 245 92.2 8 154 762 7.3
1 001– 10 000 2 713 6.7 7 813 084 6.9

10 001– 100 000 310 0.8 10 204 934 9.0
100 001– 121 0.3 86 826 776 76.8

40 389 100.0 112 999 556 100.0
Source: VPC AB’s public share register as of 1995-12-29

Ten largest shareholders
Number Number In percent of In percent of

of shares of votes share capital voting rights

1) Investor AB 14 955 052 14 955 052 13.2 30.3
2) Skanska Invest AB 9 870 000 9 870 000 8.7 20.0
3) Nordbanken savings funds 4 282 800 546 040 3.8 1.1
4) Försäkringsbolaget SPP Ömsesidigt (pension funds) 3 472 336 1 691 119 3.1 3.4
5) Folksam, including AMF sjukförsäkring (insurance group) 2 066 200 151 916 1.8 0.3
6) The National Insurance Fund, Fourth Fund managing board 1 976 800 1 976 800 1.8 4.0
7) Trygg-Hansa Insurance group 1 806 644 1 441 665 1.6 2.9
8) AMF Pensionsförsäkrings AB (labor market pension funds) 1 005 000 1 005 000 0.9 2.1
9) Stiftelsen för Kunskapsstöd och Kompetensutveckling 800 000 600 200 0.7 1.2

10) The National Insurance Fund, Fifth Fund managing board 734 320 734 320 0.7 1.5

36.3 66.8
Source: VPC AB’s public share register as of 1995-12-29

The proportion of institutional ownership is 59 percent.

Per-share data 1)

Swedish kronor/share 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995

Earnings per share 2) 10.15 7.55 – 10.40 – 13.90 – 4.40 11.05 17.95
Dividend per A and B share 4.25 4.25 4.25 – – 4.25 5.25
Total dividends in millions of Swedish kronor 459 480 480 – – 480 593
Purchase price of B shares at year-end
on the Stockholm Stock Exchange 157 66 94 74 132 122.50 127

Shareholders’ equity per share 2) 102 102 86 75 75 83 91
Yield in percent (B) 2.7 6.4 4.5 – – 3.5 4.1
P/E ratio, B 15.5 8.7 –     9.0 – 5.3 – 30.2 11.1 7.1

1) The above data has been adjusted to reflect the 1989 stock split and the conversion of debentures into shares in 1990.
2) Dilution effect after full conversion is immaterial (below 3 percent).
3) Dividend according to the Board’s proposed distribution of surplus.

3)





Parent Company Board of Directors

  

 , Stockholm
Born 1934. Chairman.
Board member since 1992.
Chairman AB Electrolux, Saab AB, Scania
AB and Incentive AB.
Vice Chairman Investor AB and Atlas Copco
AB.
Board member Email Limited (Australia),
The Swedish Employers’ Confederation and
The Federation of Swedish Industries.
Shareholding in SKF: 10 000

 , Göteborg
Born 1945. Employee representative. 
Board member since 1975.
Chairman Executive Committee of the City
Council of Göteborg.
Chairman Liseberg AB.
Board member Götaverken Miljö AB and
Statens Vattenfallsverk.
Shareholding in SKF: 100

 , Göteborg
Born 1935. Board member since 1976.
Board member Scania AB, Investor AB,
Sandvik AB, Brukens AB, Novare Kapital
AB, The Swedish Employers’ Confederation
and The Federation of Swedish Industries.
Shareholding in SKF: 46 492

 , Stockholm
Born 1929. Board member since 1982.
Chairman Kalmar Industries AB.
Vice Chairman AB Electrolux and Axel
Johnson AB.
Board member Atlas Copco AB and The
Federation of Swedish Industries.
Shareholding in SKF: 1 000

- , Sandviken
Born 1938. Board member since 1987.
Chairman Svenska Kraftnät (Swedish
National Grid).
Board member Sandvik AB, Handelsbanken,
SSAB Swedish Steel Corporation, AB Volvo,
Skanska AB, AB Custos, OK Petroleum,
Assa Abloy AB, N. V. Koninklijke Sphinx
and The Federation of Swedish Industries.





    

  ,
Turin, Italy
Born 1930. Board member since 1987.
Chairman Electrolux Zanussi, Atlas Copco
Italia, Perstorp Italia, Sanitari Pozzi and
Consortium (Italy).
Vice Chairman and member of the Ericsson
S.p.A. Executive Committee.
Board member Electrolux España S.A.
(Spain) and member of the Advisory Board
of Schroder Bank.

 , Stockholm
Born 1956. Board member since 1988.
Vice Chairman AB Astra and Saab AB.
Board member Investor AB, Incentive AB,
Saab Automobile AB, Scania AB, Skandi-
naviska Enskilda Banken and the Wallenberg
Foundation.
Shareholding in SKF: 6 000

 , Kilchberg, Switzerland
Born 1941. Board member since 1991.
Executive Vice President of the ABB Group.

 , Drottningholm
Born 1943. Board member since 1992.
President and Chief Executive Officer Atlas
Copco AB.
Board member Saab Automobile AB.
Shareholding in SKF: 800

 , Bollebygd
Born 1935. Employee representative. 
Board member since 1993.
Chairman SIF (The Swedish Union of Cleri-
cal and Technical Employees in Industry),
AB SKF, Göteborg.
Shareholding in SKF: 500

 , Lidingö
Born 1947. Board member since 1993.
President and Group Chief Executive
Skanska AB.
Chairman Euroc AB, Securitas AB and JM
Byggnads och Fastighets AB.
Vice Chairman Assa Abloy AB.
Board member Skanska AB, AB Custos and
The Federation of Swedish Industries.

 , Göteborg
Born 1955. President and Group Chief
Executive. Board member since 1995.
Board member Chalmers Industriteknik (CIT).
Shareholding in SKF: 3 000

  

 , Göteborg
Born 1952. Employee representative.
Deputy board member since 1987.
Chairman Metalworkers’ Union, AB SKF,
Göteborg.
Shareholding in SKF: 20

 , Lidköping
Born 1934. Employee representative.
Deputy board member since 1987.
Board member SIF (The Swedish Union of
Clerical and Technical Employees in Indus-
try), Lidköping Machine Tools AB.
Shareholding in SKF: 32



 
Arthur Andersen AB.





Group organization and management
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 ,
Göteborg, born 1955
Group Chief Executive
Employed since 1994
Shareholding in SKF: 3 000
Board member Chalmers
Industriteknik (CIT)

 , Lerum,
born 1939
Components Division
Employed since 1959
Shareholding in SKF: 3 537

 ,
Hong Kong, born 1945
Asian Bearing Division
Employed since 1969
Shareholding in SKF: 1 300

 , 
Göteborg, born 1942
Group Legal
Employed  since 1970
Shareholding in SKF: 1 679
Board member AB Ludvig
Svensson and Institutet för
Utländsk Rätt AB

 ,
Schweinfurt, Germany, 
born 1944
Specialty Products Division
Employed since 1970
Shareholding in SKF: 33
Board member FPB
Holding AG and Stora
Feldmühle AG, 
Düsseldorf, Germany

 ,
Göteborg, born 1945
Purchasing, Logistics &
Information Systems
Division
Employed since 1970
Shareholding in SKF: 6 296

 ,
Hilversum, the Netherlands,
born 1942
Group Technical
Development
Employed since 1971
Board member Ytkemiska
institutet

 ,
Saint-Cyr-sur-Loire,
France, born 1947
Industrial Bearing 
Division
Employed since 1972

  ,
Göteborg, born 1943
Group Public Affairs
Employed since 1974
Shareholding in SKF: 200
Board member Western
Sweden Chamber of
Commerce and the
International Council of
Swedish Industries

 , Stockholm,
born 1948
Ovako Steel
Employed since 1974
Shareholding in SKF: 150

 ,
Göteborg, born 1944
Group Business
Development
Employed since 1975
Shareholding in SKF: 4 051
Board member Cutting
Tools Technology,
Frankfurt, Germany

 ,
Göteborg, born 1946
Group Total Quality
Development
Employed since 1975

 ,
Göteborg, born 1955
Automotive Bearing
Division
Employed since 1977

 , Turin,
Italy, born 1944
Electrical Bearing Division
Employed since 1979

 ,
Göteborg, born 1955
Group Personnel
Employed since 1981

 , Haverford,
PA, USA, born 1944
Seals Division and SKF
USA, Inc.
Employed since 1986
Board member Right
Management Consultants,
Inc. and Regional Advisory
Board of First Fidelity Bank,
Philadelphia, PA, USA

 ,
Mölnlycke, born 1948
Emerging Business Division
Employed since 1988

 ,
Göteborg, born 1951
Group Finance
Employed since 1989
Shareholding in SKF: 2 000
Board member S-E-Banken
Allemansfonder AB and
Ågrenska





Asia – the great challenge



With a population of approxi-
mately three billion and a high
rate of growth, Asia is rapidly

becoming a new driving force in the world
economy. For the SKF Group, this means
that personnel, technical and financial
resources must be mobilized as part of a
strategic investment in the region for the
future. At the same time, the Group must
secure and develop its leading position in
the already established main markets.

During recent years, Asia has shown the
fastest economic growth in the world. It is
estimated that the increase in China’s
Gross Domestic Product (GDP) exceeded
ten percent in 1995. In Korea it was up
nine percent and in Taiwan by seven per-
cent. Growth is expected to continue dur-
ing the foreseeable future. Based on an
unchanged growth rate China, with more
than 1.2 billion inhabitants, could establish
itself as the world’s third strongest econ-
omy already by the end of the century,
after the U.S. and Japan.

In Asia, business is to a large extent
based on personal relations at the same
time as advance planning is of decisive
importance. Business links that will apply
well into the future are made against this
background. Accordingly, it is vital that
SKF, which will play an important role as a
supplier of bearings in the region, partici-
pates in developments from the beginning.

Stable tradition

Such a business culture means that compa-
nies wanting to invest in Asia must be pre-
pared to accept that it will take a long time

and that costs will be incurred in order to
achieve results. For SKF, which has long
and stable operating traditions in the
region, this represents a strength factor.
The Group already operated three sales
companies of its own in the area in the
1920s: in Japan, Australia and New
Zealand, which at that time were the most
developed countries in the region.

The market scenario changed dramati-
cally following the end of the Second
World War. At that time, well protected by
visible and invisible trading restrictions,
Japan commenced its industrial expansion.
A steadily growing and increasingly
advanced production apparatus combined
with tough price competition led to the
elimination of competitors, initially from
the domestic market and subsequently in
parts also from other markets in the region.

In the mid-1970s, when the new so-
called tiger economies of Korea, Singa-
pore, Taiwan and Malaysia harvested their
first successes, SKF began to advance its
positions in the region. Manufacturing was
started in Singapore and a new sales com-
pany was established in Malaysia. Market-
ing efforts were strengthened in Australia
and New Zealand and at the end of the
1970s SKF’s market share in Asia was
approaching ten percent.

Sales companies

To further strengthen its position, SKF for-
mulated a new strategy in the middle of
the 1980s. The first stage was to increase
volumes by significantly expanding the
sales organization. Consequently, new

sales companies were started within the
space of just a few years in Thailand,
Hong Kong, Korea, the Philippines,
Taiwan and Indonesia. 

In India, where SKF already in the mid-
1960s had established manufacturing in
the city of Pune, the Group invested in
another plant in Bangalore, southern India.
This was to secure the necessary capacity
to be able to supply a rapidly expanding
domestic market, where local manufactur-
ing was essential if access was to be
gained at all to the closed, Indian market.

By the beginning of the 1990s the strat-
egy had started to produce results and
increasingly larger volumes were shipped
from the Group’s European plants to the
region. Year-by-year, SKF’s market share
steadily increased.

New plant

The second stage of the Asian strategy was
to increase the Group’s own manufacturing
resources in the region. Following a com-
prehensive analysis, the decision was
made at the beginning of 1990 to construct
a completely new plant in Nilai, just south
of Kuala Lumpur in Malaysia. The plant
was equipped with the latest machines and
state-of-the-art equipment for rolling bear-
ing production available in the market.
Production of deep groove ball bearings
and spherical roller bearings was started at
the plant as early as 1992.

The new plant has played a key role in
the successes of recent years, which have
led to the Group now holding a market
share in the region of 17–18 percent,
excluding Japan. However, SKF is now
also making progress in the Japanese mar-
ket. Manufacturing customers in Japan,
who previously purchased their bearings
from domestic suppliers, have started to
purchase from the SKF plant in Nilai.
Deliveries from SKF’s European plants to
end-customers in Japan have also
increased. This means that during the past
two years, the Group has doubled its mar-
ket share in Japan, from a half percent to
one percent.

SKF’s focus on Japan is characterized
by its strong concentration on a few major,
trend-setting key customers, well-known
for their high quality demands. It is impor-
tant for SKF to be in a position to offer
these customers technologically advanced
and attractive products in order to be able
to develop a lasting business relationship.





 ‒   

Korean offensive

Technologically attractive solutions were
also the key to penetrating the Korean
market, where in just a few years SKF has
created a strong position as a supplier of
Hub Units to the strongly expanding
Korean automakers. Today, Korea is the
world’s fifth largest car producer. Initially,
the market was supplied with Hub Units
imported from Europe but during 1995
production was started locally under SKF
license by a Korean partner. During the
year, the decision was also made to jointly
establish a local company with the same
Korean partner for the production of Hub
Units that are more technologically
advanced than those produced under
license. The new plant is scheduled for
completion at the beginning of 1997. SKF
will be the majority owner in the new ven-
ture.

Expansion in China

The Group’s presence in China started as
early as 1912, when an office was opened
in Shanghai. Thereafter, SKF had an on-
going export flow to China up until 1951,
when foreign companies were forced to
leave the country. However, SKF returned
in 1988 and established a head office to
serve China in Hong Kong. Inventories
were built up in China and a network of
distributors was developed.

It is now intended that the Chinese auto-
motive industry, which by international
standards is still very limited, will expand
strongly with the help of European and
American automotive manufacturers. For
SKF, it was natural to respond to the
desires of both the customers and the
Chinese authorities to establish local man-
ufacturing in China. A company was
formed in 1994 with SKF and Shanghai
Bearing Corporation as joint owners for
the assembly of bearings for the Chinese
automotive industry. SKF holds the major-
ity interest and is also responsible for the
management of the company. Conditions
regarding the establishment of another
joint venture in China with Shanghai Bear-
ing Corporation are currently being stud-
ied by SKF and the owners of the Chinese
company, namely the city of Shanghai.

Shanghai Bearing Corporation, which
consists of some 40 manufacturing units,
all located in the Shanghai area, is one of
China’s leading manufacturers of rolling
bearings. The study now being made is

intended to identify which of the units
should be included in a possible new com-
pany. The intention is that SKF will hold
the majority interest and undertake man-
agement responsibility.

SKF is also negotiating the establish-
ment of a company for the production of
rolling bearings for railway customers in
China.

The investments in China are aimed at
providing SKF with a leading position as a
supplier of rolling bearings to this gigantic
market. Even at this early stage, it is essen-
tial to prepare the foundation for future
operations in the Chinese market.

During recent years, the SKF Group has
changed its organization in order to
become more customer-oriented and
global. The traditional geographic distribu-
tion of operations has ceased to exist, with
one exception, Asia. This market is sub-
stantial in size, culturally very different,
heterogeneous and fast-growing. This has
led to SKF deciding to group its Asian
rolling bearing operations in one division
based in Hong Kong. The decision to
locate the management of the division in
the region was considered a natural move
in order to secure the necessary close and
intensive contact with the market.

Career opportunities

The investments made in Asia have not
always been entirely trouble-free. A prob-
lem common to Asia as a whole is the
recruitment of personnel. The strong
expansion in the region has led to substan-
tial demand for well-trained personnel, at
the same time as availability is limited.
This results in a high employee-turnover
rate at the various locations. Accordingly,
SKF is working extremely hard to create
interesting positions in attractive working
environments. The provision of extensive
internal training programs and of working
positions that offer good development
prospects and solid career opportunities
are very important components in the
Asian labor market.

With the investments made in sales
companies and plants in Asia during the
past ten years, and the current negotiations
and discussions regarding several addi-
tional projects, the SKF Group is well
equipped to continue its expansion and
strengthen its positions in what are cur-
rently the world’s most rapidly growing
markets. As a result, new volumes are con-
tributed to the Group, which can also be
exploited by the European and North
American production plants, at the same
time as manufacturing capacity must be
expanded in Asia.

During the last 20 years, SKF has expanded significantly in Asia. In addition to the manufac-
turing and sales facilities marked in the map, there is a well developed network of branch
offices and distributors to cover the other parts of the region.

Manufacturing and/or Joint ventures

Sales





Seven-year review of the SKF Group
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Amounts in millions of Swedish kronor unless otherwise stated 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995

Income statements *

Net sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 25 066 27 766 26 302 26 649 29 200 33 273 36 700
of which in Sweden . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 143 1 137 969 1 463 1 415 1 837 2 202

Other operating income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 61 165 238 213 427 151 106
Operating expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . –22 842 –25 627 –26 460 –27 811 –28 982 –30 891 –32 861

Operating income/loss. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 285 2 304 80 – 949 645 2 533 3 945
Financial income and expense – net. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . – 270 – 614 – 299 – 988 – 1 158 – 714 – 611

Income/loss after financial income and expense . . . . . . . 2 015 1 690 – 219 – 1 937 – 513 1 819 3 334
Taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . – 964 – 678 – 66 357 19 – 545 – 1 278
Equity in loss/income of associated companies . . . . . . . . 78 – 133 – 907 – – – –

Income/loss after taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 129 879 – 1 192 – 1 580 – 494 1 274 2 056
Extraordinary expense – net of taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . – – – – 52 – – –
Minority interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . – 32 – 26 17 7 – – 28 – 30

Net income/loss. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 097 853 – 1 175 – 1 625 – 494 1 246 2 026

Balance sheets *

Current financial assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 417 3 812 3 823 3 075 2 692 2 356 2 897
Trade accounts receivable. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 941 4 976 4 973 5 332 5 655 6 157 6 111
Inventories . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8 382 9 954 9 426 9 435 9 220 8 606 8 972
Other current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 662 931 1 126 1 050 1 187 1 360 1 165
Property, plant and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 555 9 105 11 372 11 269 11 865 11 116 11 286
Other capital assets. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 060 2 622 2 050 2 720 3 732 3 117 2 564

Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 27 017 31 400 32 770 32 881 34 351 32 712 32 995

Short-term loans . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 417 3 469 4 978 3 258 2 228 2 047 1 715
Other short-term liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5 765 6 107 6 571 7 119 7 680 7 398 7 459
Long-term loans (including convertible loans) . . . . . . . . 1 940 3 769 4 443 6 517 7 044 4 954 4 584
Other long-term liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5 720 6 237 6 856 7 439 8 761 8 797 8 798
Minority interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 146 240 172 113 127 144 166
Shareholders’ equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 029 11 578 9 750 8 435 8 511 9 372 10 273

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity . . . . . . . . . . . . 27 017 31 400 32 770 32 881 34 351 32 712 32 995

Key figures (in percentages unless otherwise stated) *

Return on total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10.8 9.9 2.5 – 1.3 3.5 8.9 13.0
Return on capital employed. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15.9 14.3 3.5 – 1.8 4.9 13.1 19.0
Return on shareholders’ equity. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10.2 7.1 – 10.3 – 16.8 – 5.6 13.3 19.4
Profit margin . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11.2 10.5 2.9 – 1.5 4.0 9.2 12.2
Turnover of total assets, times . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.96 0.94 0.84 0.84 0.86 0.97 1.07
Share of risk-bearing capital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 47.0 42.6 34.6 29.8 25.0 29.1 32.7
Solvency . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 41.4 37.6 30.3 26.0 25.1 29.1 31.6

Investments and employees

Additions to property, plant and equipment . . . . . . . . . . 1 290 1 589 1 778 1 121 933 1 356 2 296
of which in Sweden . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 76 98 129 140 238 293 427

Research and development expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 465 534 538 473 552 542 598
Average number of employees . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 46 667 49 305 45 285 46 672 39 439 40 072 42 641

of which in Sweden . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5 305 4 996 4 500 6 871 5 975 6 282 6 418
Number of employees registered at December 31 . . . . . . 49 413 53 995 52 469 45 151 41 394 41 732 43 754
Salaries, wages and social charges . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9 658 11 142 11 279 11 845 12 277 12 869 13 744

of which in Sweden . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 438 1 519 1 488 2 377 1 979 2 117 2 361

Product areas *

Net sales
Bearings **. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 754 26 476 24 347 22 690 24 767 28 168 31 003
Seals ** . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . – – – – 2 752 3 099 3 456
Tools. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 246 1 332 1 978 1 731 – – –
Special steels . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . – – – 3 076 2 891 3 758 4 168
Other and eliminations ** . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 66 – 42 – 23 – 848 – 1 210 – 1 752 – 1 927

25 066 27 766 26 302 26 649 29 200 33 273 36 700
Income/loss after financial income and expense

Bearings **. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 944 1 686 – 133 – 1 361 – 200 1 499 2 804
Seals ** . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . – – – – 33 118 229
Tools. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 127 40 –   103 –  117 – – –
Special steels . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . – – – –  569 – 351 188 297
Other and eliminations ** . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . – 56 – 36 17 110 5 14 4

2 015 1 690 –     219 –  1 937 – 513 1 819 3 334

* Previously published amounts have been recalculated to reflect changes in accounting principles.

** Previously published amounts have been restated to conform to the current Group structure.



Words in SKF’s world

After-market Those customers, such as
distributors, who buy bearings for resale.
Also called replacement market.

Axial load Load acting in the direction
along the shaft/axis.

Ball bearing Bearing with balls as rolling
elements. May contain one or more rows
of balls.

Bar-rolling mill Rolling mill where steel
billets are processed into finished flat or
round bars.

Bearing Machine element for reducing
the friction between moving machine
parts. Most bearings nowadays are rolling
bearings, consisting of inner ring, outer
ring, a number of rolling elements (balls or
rollers) and a cage. Most bearings are
made from steel.

Bearing housing Product in which a
rolling bearing is mounted for protection
and support. Made of cast metal or plastic
and used in many different applications,
such as fans, paper-making machines, etc.

Bearing unit Product in which the bear-
ing has been integrated with other compo-
nents in a single unit. The bearing is fixed
and greased for its entire lifetime.

Break-even point The point where oper-
ating income and expense are equally
large. 

Cage Bearing component which keeps the
balls or rollers separated from each other
when the bearing is rotating. Normally
made of steel, but sometimes of brass or
plastic.

CARB™ New bearing type which com-
bines the best properties of cylindrical,
spherical and needle roller bearings.

Channel concept Manufacturing system
within SKF which increases flexibility and
reduces lead times. Required the introduc-
tion of a completely new work organiza-
tion.

Continuous casting Continuous casting
of steel to form steel ingots.

Cylindrical roller bearing (CRB) Roller
bearing with cylindrical rollers.

Deep groove ball bearing (DGBB) Ball
bearing where the balls run in grooves in
the inner and outer ring.

EDC European Distribution Centre –
SKF’s central warehouse in Tongeren,
Belgium.

FlexLink Modular chain conveyor system
with plastic links for the transportation of
lightweight goods, such as food, pharma-
ceutical products, or bearing components
in SKF’s factories.

Heavy bar mill Rolling mill in which
steel billets are converted to bars or to bil-
lets for tube rolling.

Hub Unit /THBU Easy-to-mount, com-
pact bearing unit for passenger car and
truck wheels.

Hybrid bearing Bearing with steel rings
and rolling elements of ceramic material.

Lead time Time from the ordering of raw
material to delivery of the finished bearing.

Mechanical face seal Two-part seal for
rotating shafts where one part is fixed and
the other rotates. Used for bearings in
washing machines and other household
appliances, various types of pumps and the
tracks of tracked vehicles.

Needle roller bearing (NRB) Bearing
with long, thin cylindrical rollers. Used in
applications where space is limited.

OEM customers Original Equipment
Manufacturers – those customers who buy
bearings to use them in their own products,
e g manufacturers of cars, household
appliances, machines, etc.

Oil film A very thin film of oil (one thou-
sandth of a millimeter) which prevents the
rolling elements in a bearing from coming
into direct contact with the outer or inner
ring.

Oil seals Common name for seals used
for oil greasing.

Precision bearing Bearing for machine
tools with very high rotating speed. Used
in such applications as spindle units.

Radial load Load acting in a direction
perpendicular to the shaft/axis, i e along
the radius.

Railway bearing unit (TBU) Cartridge
unit with taper roller bearings. Also called
axle box.

Resetting time The time it takes to reset a
machine from the production of one bear-
ing type or size to another.

Roller bearing Bearing with rollers as
rolling elements. May contain one or more
rows of rollers.

Rolling bearing steel Special steel of
very high purity for rolling bearing pro-
duction.

Rolling bearings Common name for ball
and roller bearings.

Rolling elements Common name for the
balls and rollers in a bearing.

Rolling/milling Method of processing
steel to produce the desired products (bar,
wire, sheet and tube).

Seal Steel or rubber component which is
mounted between the outer and the inner
ring in a bearing, or around the shaft out-
side the bearing, to prevent dirt and mois-
ture from entering the bearing and the
lubricant from leaking out. Seals are also
used in many other applications (e g Valve
stem seal, Shock absorber seal).

Sensor Electrical transmitter which regis-
ters revolutions, speed, temperature, etc.
Integrated in wheel bearing units and simi-
lar components.

Shock absorber seal Sealing ring, spe-
cially designed for short, shock-loaded
axial movements.

SKF Engineering & Research Centre
B.V. SKF’s research center in the
Netherlands.

Slewing bearing Large rolling bearing for
cranes and tunnel-boring machines. May
be several meters in diameter.

Spherical bearing Ball or roller bearing
where the inside surface of the outer ring
is sphered (rounded), which means that the
bearing can adapt itself to misalignment of
the shaft. 

Spindle unit Complete bearing unit with
precision bearings for machine tools.

Taper roller bearing (TRB) Roller bear-
ing with tapered rollers.

Thrust bearing Ball or roller bearing for
axial loads.

TQM Total Quality Management –
quality concept within SKF comprising
production, products, employees, service
and attitudes.

Valve stem seal Seal for control and
metering of oil lubrication for inlet and
outlet valves of combustion engines.

Y bearing Single-row, sealed, deep-
groove ball bearing in which the outer sur-
face of the outer ring is sphered to be able
to accommodate misalignment between
the bearing and the housing. Used in such
applications as agricultural machines.


